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AGENDA

wynm SPECIAL MEETING OF COUNCIL

ohﬁ/]. coxt. oounﬁ/q MONDAY 12 SEPTEMBER 2016

PLEASE NOTE: This meeting will start at 7.00pm in the Council Chamber, Civic Centre,
45 Princes Highway, Werribee to deal with matters pursuant to Section 83(a) of the Local
Government Act 1989

Recording of Council Meeting

Councillors and others present should note that, in accordance with Clause 10(1) of Wyndham’s
Governance Local Law 2013, this meeting will be recorded for the purposes of producing
accurate minutes of the meeting. Some members of the media and public may also record
these meetings, so long as they have been permitted to do so by the CEO prior to the meeting,
and they abide by the CEQ's set of Guidelines available on Council’s website.

BUSINESS
“In the spirit of reconciliation, before we begin this meeting, | acknowledge the

peoples of the Kulin Nation as the Traditional Owners of the land on which
Wyndham is being built. We pay our respects to their elders, past and present.”

1. OPENING PRAYER & WELCOME

“We pray for guidance in the Council’s decision making to achieve the best
outcome for the people of Wyndham.”

2. APOLOGIES & REQUESTS FOR LEAVE

3. DECLARATION BY COUNCILLORS OF DISCLOSURE OF CONFLICT OF
INTEREST/CONFLICTING PERSONAL INTEREST IN ANY ITEM OF THE AGENDA

4. OFFICERS’ REPORTS

4.1 WYNDHAM CITY FINANCIAL REPORTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
30 JUNE 2016 3

5.  CONFIDENTIAL BUSINESS
NIL

6. CLOSE OF MEETING
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REPORTS SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING
MONDAY, 12 SEPTEMBER 2016

FILE NO: 45/010/081 ITEM NO: 4.1

DIRECTOR CITY
TRANSFORMATION - STEVEN
LAMBERT

WYNDHAM CITY FINANCIAL REPORTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

Summary

The purpose of this paper is to seek ‘in principle’ approval for Wyndham City’s Financial Reports
for the year ended 30 June 2016 which include:

Financial Statements as at 30 June 2016
Performance Statement for the year ended 30 June 2016
Governance and Management Checklist

The statements have been prepared in accordance with all regulatory requirements and have
been audited by the Victorian Auditor General's agent HLB Mann Judd. The Audit & Risk
Management Committee have reviewed the Statements and Checklist, discussed any issues
with the Auditors and have concluded that the Statements should be submitted to the Auditor
General.

These statements are consolidated statements, incorporating Western Leisure Services Pty Ltd.

Overall, Wyndham City is currently in a healthy financial position as is evident by the operating
result and balance sheet.

Attachments

1. Financial Statements 2015/16
2. Performance Statement 2015/16
3. Governance and Management Checklist 2015/16

Officers’ Declaration of Interests

Under Section 80C of the Local Government Act 1989 (as amended), officers providing advice
to Council must disclose any interests, including the type of interest.

Director City Transformation - Steven Lambert
In providing this advice as the Director, | have no disclosable interests in this report.

Manager Finance & Property - Binda Gokhale
In providing this advice as the Manager, | have no disclosable interests in this report.

Financial Accounting Coordinator - Chen Wei
In providing this advice as the Author, | have no disclosable interests in this report.
Key Issues

Operating Result for the year.

Balance Sheet.

Performance Statement.

Governance and Management Checklist.

Statutory requirements.
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REPORTS SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING
MONDAY, 12 SEPTEMBER 2016

FILE NO: 45/010/081 ITEM NO: 4.1
DIRECTOR CITY TRANSFORMATION -
STEVEN LAMBERT

WYNDHAM CITY FINANCIAL REPORTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016
(cont’d)

RECOMMENDATION
That Council:

1.  Approve “in principle” the Financial Statements (Attachment 1) for the year ended 30 June
2016; and

2. Authorise two Councillors, Cr. Adele Hegedich and Cr. Glenn Goodfellow, to sign the
Financial Statements in their final form; and

3.  Approve “in principle” the Performance Statement for the year ended 30 June 2016
(Attachment 2); and

4.  Authorise two Councillors, Cr. Adele Hegedich and Cr. Glenn Goodfellow, to sign the
Performance Statement in its final form; and

Approve the Governance and Management Checklist (Attachment 3); and

Authorise the Mayor, Cr. Adele Hegedich to sign the Governance and Management
Checklist.
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REPORTS SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING
MONDAY, 12 SEPTEMBER 2016

FILE NO: 45/010/081 ITEM NO: 4.1
DIRECTOR CITY TRANSFORMATION -
STEVEN LAMBERT

WYNDHAM CITY FINANCIAL REPORTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016
(cont’d)

1. Discussion

A. Operating Result

The Operating Statement summarises Wyndham City’s income and expenditure for the period
1 July 2015 to 30 June 2016.

Total operating expenses incurred for the period amount to $286.2 million. Wyndham City’s
major expenditure items for the year were;

Salaries and associated costs $111.6 million
Materials and services expenditure $101.5 million
Depreciation and amortisation $65.4 million

The total revenue for the year was $463.2 million, major revenue items include;

Rates and charges $161.0 million
Subdivisional asset contributions (non-monetary) $139.8 million
User fees and fines $84.3 million
Grants $38.1 million
Developer contributions (monetary) $33.9 million

Wyndham City’s operating result was a surplus of $177.0 million for 2015/16, compared to a
surplus of $87.3 million in the budget. Included in the 2015/16 results was $139.8 million of
subdivisional asset contributions compared to a budget of $59.0 million. The timing of
subdivisional asset contributions is difficult to predict as they are recognised when new estates
are transferred to Council to maintain. Also, subdivisional asset contributions are non-monetary
in nature and therefore just a book entry. Excluding subdivisional asset contributions, the
operating result would have been $37.2 million, $8.9 million favourable compared to budget.
The details and explanation of the variance between the budget and actual result are outlined in
Note 2 of the Financial Statements (Attachment 1. pages 15-19).
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REPORTS SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING
MONDAY, 12 SEPTEMBER 2016

FILE NO: 45/010/081 ITEM NO: 4.1
DIRECTOR CITY TRANSFORMATION -
STEVEN LAMBERT

WYNDHAM CITY FINANCIAL REPORTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016
(cont’d)

B. Balance Sheet

Wyndham City’s Balance Sheet summarises the assets and liabilities of Wyndham City and the
net equity position of Wyndham City as at 30 June 2016.

Overall Wyndham City’s net equity is $3,208.2 million. This is made up of:

Total Assets $3,351.4 million
Less Total Liabilities $143.2 million
Net Equity $3,208.2 million

The overall strong financial position is also evident in Wyndham City’s capacity to meet current
financial commitments through liquid assets. Current assets are more than 3 times current
liabilities representing a strong liquidity position for Wyndham City. A large percentage of the
liquid assets relate to developer contributions held in reserves to assist in the funding of future
infrastructure in the growth areas, and to complete projects from the 2015/2016 capital works
program.

The total non-current assets have increased by $251.0 million from the previous year. The
variance is mainly attributable to subdivisional asset contributions and assets constructed and
purchased by Council in 2015/16.

Current liabilities have increased by $5.4 million from the previous year. This was mainly due to
$5.9 million of carbon tax provision moving from non-current to current.

Non-current liabilities have increased by $21.6 million due primarily to $15.0 million of new loans
undertaken. Also contributing to the increase in non-current liabilities was an increase in the
provision for the rehabilitation of the landfill site.

In 2015/16, Wyndham City’s overall net asset base increased by $286.1 million. The growth in
Council’s asset base is consistent with the growth trends across a broad range of measures that
currently position Wyndham City as one of the fastest growing municipalities in Australia. The
high growth in the asset base brings with it the challenges of maintaining, servicing and
ultimately renewing a rapidly expanding asset base.
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REPORTS SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING
MONDAY, 12 SEPTEMBER 2016

FILE NO: 45/010/081 ITEM NO: 4.1

DIRECTOR CITY TRANSFORMATION -
STEVEN LAMBERT

WYNDHAM CITY FINANCIAL REPORTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016
(cont’d)

C. Performance Statement

Wyndham City must prepare a Performance Statement as soon as practicable after the end of
the financial year. The Performance Statement has been prepared in accordance with the
requirements of the Local Government Performance Reporting Framework (LGPRF).

The Annual Performance Statement is detailed in Attachment 2.

D. Governance and Management Checklist

The performance statement is supported by the Governance and Management Checklist, which
is Council’'s assessment against the prescribed criteria provided under the LGPRF.

E. Statutory Process

Sections 131-134 of the Local Government Act 1989 outline the process to be followed by local
government entities to adopt and sign their Annual Financial Statements and Performance
Statement.

Under these arrangements, local government entities cannot submit their statements, to the
Auditor General unless they have passed the two required resolutions in respect of each
statement.

The first resolution gives “in principle” approval to the statements. The second resolution
authorises two Councillors on behalf of Wyndham City to certify the statements once the Auditor
General has finalised a review of the statements and any resulting amendments or changes that
have been made. The statements cannot be certified prior to submission to the Auditor General
and only those Councillors authorised to sign the statements may do so.

It is recommended that the Mayor and Councillor Goodfellow, as two of the Council
representatives on the Audit and Risk Management Committee, be signatories to the
statements.
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REPORTS

SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING
MONDAY, 12 SEPTEMBER 2016

FILE NO: 45/010/081

ITEM NO: 4.1
DIRECTOR CITY TRANSFORMATION -
STEVEN LAMBERT

WYNDHAM CITY FINANCIAL REPORTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016
(cont’d)

Outlined below is the process for Wyndham City in having their financial statements and

performance statement audited.

Council (staff) prepares statements

v

Auditor-General’s service provider (HLB Mann Judd)
completes audit fieldwork

v

Audit Committee reviews draft statement/s with the
benefit of comments by Council management and the
auditors, HLB Mann Judd

v

Council reviews draft statement/s with the benefit
of the recommendations of the Audit Committee
and comments of Council management and the

Auditor-General’s service provider.

Council resolves to:
Approve statements in principle; and
Authorise two signing Councillors

v

Statement/s, Council resolutions and all other key
deliverable’s forwarded to the Auditor-General for
review.

) Yes
Material change
or qualification

proposed

¢ No

Authorised Councillors sign statement/s

v

Auditor-General signs opinion/s

Note: Review at the Audit and Risk
Management Committee Meeting held
on 7 September 2016.

Note: Council must pass these resolutions
before the statements are provided to the
Auditor-General for review. The statements
must not be signed before presentation to the
Auditor-General. These resolutions are
required only once.

Note: Council may require that if any
material changes or a qualification is
proposed, that these matters be
considered by the Audit committee and/or
Council itself before authorised Councillors
sign the statements.

The Financial Statements and Performance Statement together with the Auditor General’s
reports will be incorporated into the Annual Report. The Annual Report is required to be
submitted to the Minister by 30 September 2016 to meet the statutory timeframes.

2.  Council Policy

Wyndham City’s statements have been prepared in accordance with the relevant financial
management policies in place, Australian equivalent to the international financial reporting

standards and regulatory requirements.
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ATTACHMENT NO: 1 - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2015/16 ‘ ‘ ITEM NO: 4.1

WYNDHAM CITY
CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

For the Year Ended 30 June 2016
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ATTACHMENT NO: 1 - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2015/16 cont.

| ITEM NO: 4.1

ham C
Pinancle Report

Tahle of Contents

FINANCIAL REPORT

Financial Statements
Comprehensive Income Statement

Balanoe Sheet

Stalement of Changes in Equity
Siaiement of Cash Flows
Blalament of Capital Works

Notes to Financial Statements

Mole 1
Note 2
Mote 3
Mote &
Mot 5
Nole 6
Mola T
Mote 8

Signihcant accounting poboes
Butgel comparison
Rates and charges
Statuioey fees and fines
iser fees

Granis

Coniributicns

et gain / (loss) on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment

Mole B Other income

Nole 10 Emgloyes costs

Mol 11 Maberials and services

Nobe 12 Bad and doubthal debls

Mabe 13 Deprediation and amorfisation

Mot 14 Baorrowing costs

Nole 15 Ofher sxpenses

Noile 16 Cash and cash aquivalanis

MNala 17 Trade and ofhar rmoatvables

Mole 18 Ofiher financial assels

Mol 19 Irnvenbones

Mol 20 Assels hald for sale

MNole 21 Other asgots

Mote 22 Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment
Mabe 23 Intangible assets

el 24 Trade and ofhvr payables

Mol 25 Trust funds and deposits

Nole 26 Provisions

Nole 27 Iferest hegsing lnans and besrowings
Mote 28 Reserves

Motz 29 Reorahation of cash floas trom cperatmg actnibes o sunpus/{dehot)
Nole 30 Reconchation of cash and cash equivalznts
Nobe 31 Financing arrangements

Mabe 32 Commitments

Mobe 33 Operating leases

Nole 34 Supsrannuation

Mole 35 Confingent liabilities and confingent assals
MNole 36 [Financial insirumenis

Nole 37 Relaled party iransacfions

Mol 38 Ewverils cccurming after balance date

MNole 39 Irvesiments n subsdEnes
Cerlification of the Financial Report

- oh de S

E RS 2 A SRS YR RN YRS

Wyndham City Council Special Meeting of Council 12/09/2016

Page 10 of 68



ATTACHMENT NO: 1 - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2015/16 cont. ‘ ‘ ITEM NO: 4.1

Wyndham City
2015/2016 Financial Report
Comprehensive Income Statement
For the Year Ended 30 June 2016
Note 2016 2015
§'000 $'000

Income
Rates and charges 3 161,026 148272
Stalutory fees and fines 4 11,778 9,150
User fees 6 72,491 66,644
Grants - operating ] 27676 40,790
Grants - capital 6 10,436 10,33
Contributions - monetary 1 3875 13,453
Contribufions - non monetary T 139823 £9,136
Mat gain on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment 8 862 -
Other incoma 9 5217 5411
Total income 463,184 372,186
Expenses
Employee costs 10(a) 111,59 95 496
Matenials and services 11 101,489 84,662
Bad and doubtiul dobs 12 2880 an
Depreciation and amortisation 13 65,364 61,343
Borrowing costs 14 1,868 2,058
Met loss on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment 8 - 26,299
Other expenses 16 2992 2,780
Total expenses 286,208 masn
Surplus/(deficit) for the year 176,976 99,264
Other comprehensive incoma
tems that will not be reclassified to surplus or deficit in future periods
Mel assel revalualion incrementi{decrement) »n 109,078 {108)
Total comprehensive result 286,054 99157

The above comprehensive income statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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ATTACHMENT NO: 1 - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2015/16 cont. ‘ ‘ ITEM NO: 4.1

Wyndham City
201572076 Financial Report
Balance Sheet
As at 30 June 2016
Mote 2016 20156
£000 £000

Aszets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 16 16,510 32274
Trade and other receivablas ir 30583 30662
Other financial assets 18 162 538 85,404
Imventones 19 200 140
Mon-current assets classiied as held for sale . 10,782 3
Other assets 2 2,266 3210
Total current assets 213679 151,713
Non-curment assets
Trade and olher recewables 1w 1,639 1,678
Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment 2 3,124,085 2,877,792
Intangible assots il 11,967 7,193
Total non-current assets 3137 691 2 886,663
Total assets 3,351,370 3,038,376
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables M 21945 27,967
Truest funds and daposils 25 12100 7,504
Provisions % 22452 15,237
Total current liabilities 56,497 51,108
Won-current liabilities
Provisions % 31,689 2137
Inkerest-bearing loans and borrowings a 56,000 40,000
Total non-current liabilities 86,689 65,137
Total liabilities 143,186 116,245
Met assels 3,208,184 2322130
Equity
Accurnulatod surplus 1,667 B:55 1,500,187
Resarves bl 1,550,520 1421933
Total Equity 3,208,184 2922130

The above balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes,
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ATTACHMENT NO: 1 - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2015/16 cont. ‘ ‘ ITEM NO: 4.1

Wyndham City
201572076 Financial Report
Statement of Changes in Equity
For the Year Ended 30 June 2016
Hote Accumulated  Revaluation Other
Total Surplus Reserve Reserves
216 §'000 000 £'000 £'000
Balance at beginning of the financial year 2522130 1,500,197 1,352,984 68,545
Surplus/{deficf) for the year 176,876 176,876
Mot asset revaluation increment(decrement)  28(a) 108,078 - 108,078
Tranafers fo other reserves Z8(b) (19,518) (19,518) - -
Tranafers from other reserves 28(b) 19.518 - - 19,518
Balance at end of the financial year 3,208,184 1,657 655 1,462,062 88,467
Accumulated  Revaluation Other
Total Surplus Reserve Reserves
2015 §'o00 £'000 £000 £'000
Balance at boginning of the financial year 2822073 1,408,630 1,353,080 61,253
Surplusi{deficif) for the yoar 98,264 40 264
Mot asset revaluation incrementi{decrement)  28(a) (106} . {106)
Transfers fo ather reserves 28(b) (7 696G) (7 606) - .
Transfers from other reserves 28(b) 7 698 - - 7,896
Balance at end of the financial year 2922130 1,500,197 1,352 984 68,949

The above statemsent of changes in aquity should be read with the accompanying notes,
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ATTACHMENT NO: 1 - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2015/16 cont. ‘

| ITEM NO: 4.1

Wyndham City
201572076 Financial Report
Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended 30 June 2016
2016 2015
Inflows/ Inflows!
{Outfiows) (Outflows)
Note £'000 £'000
Cash flows from operating activities
Rales and charges 158,968 147151
Slatulory fees and fines 7,038 9,150
User fees 82523 55 568
Grants - operating 26,860 42 53
Granlts - capital 10,520 10,772
Contributions - monetary Y387 13,453
Interest recened 2,217 41
Trusl funds and deposils taken 552719 35457
Net GST refundipayment g 357 13693
Employee costs {107.721) (93,038)
Materials and services {116, 866) (103,922
Trust funds and deposits repaid {51,083) {36,116)
Net cash provided byi{used in) operating activities 2 116,467 100,110
Cash flows from investing activities
Paymanls for propery, infrastrecture, plant and equipment (81,126) (110,095)
Proceeds from sabe of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment 3697 1,04
Mt paymonts for acquisition offproceeds from sale of other financial assots {67 534) 5,942
Net cash provided byi(used in) investing activities {144 963) (103,132)
Cash flews frem financing activities
Finance costs (1.868) (2,058)
Proceeds from borrowings 15,000 40,000
Repayment of bomowings - {40,321)
Met cash provided byf{used in) financing activities 13132 {2.379)
Met incraase (decreasa) in cash and cash squivalants {15,364) {5.401)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 2574 a7 676
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year a0 16,510 22
Financing arrangements H
Restrictions on cash assels 16

The above stalement of cash flow should be read with the accompanying noles.
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ATTACHMENT NO: 1 - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2015/16 cont. ‘ ‘ ITEM NO: 4.1

Wyndham City
201572076 Financial Report
Statement of Capital Works
For the Year Ended 30 June 2016
Note 2016 015
000 §000
Property
Land 4,045 13,586
Land improvements 85271 -
Total land 12,672 13 686
Buildings 2 435 52,146
Building improvemeants 963 -
Total buildings 25,398 52,146
Total property 31,570 65,133
Flant and equipment
Plant, machinery and equipment 1,983 2793
Futuras, fittings and furnifura 213 arm
Computers and telecommunications 15M1 143
Library books 1,420 1,545
Total plant and equipment 7,106 9470
Infrastructure
Roads 17,768 14,133
Bridges 3% m
Footpaths and cycleways 2,005 1,230
Drainage 133 162
Recreational, leisura and community facilities 6,324 6,766
Waste managament 198 7,082
Parks, open spate and slreelscapes 2822 3,069
Off streot car parks 491 -
Othor infrastructure 5141 2537
Tatal infrastructure 35,29 35,050
Total capital works expenditure 80,369 110,253
Represented by:
Mew assel expendilure 28 984 3,010
Assol renewal expendilture 14,210 a7 522
Asset expansion expenditure 2154 193
Asset upgrade expenditure 35,021 31 527
Total capital works sxpenditurs 80,369 110,253

The above statement of capital works should be read with the accompanying nates,

Page 7
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ATTACHMENT NO: 1 - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2015/16 cont. ‘ ‘ ITEM NO: 4.1

Wyndham City Notes to the Financial Report
2015/2016 Financial Report For the Year Ended 30 June 2016
Intradustion

The Whyndharn City Council was established by an Order of the Governor in Council on 15 December 1554 and is @ body corporate. The
Council's main office is locabed al 45 Princes Highway, Waribee, Vicionia.

Statement of compliance

Thasae financial stalements are & general purpose Sinancial reperl that consisls of a Comprehensive Income Blatemant, Balance Shaet,
Stalement of Changes in Equity, Siatement of Cash Flows, Sialement of Capital Warks and nobes accompany/ing these financial
statemants, The general purpose financlal report complies. with Ausiralian Accounfing Standands, other authcritative pronouncements of
e Australian Accounting Standards Board, fhe Looel Government Aof 1989 , and ihe Local Governmant (Planning end Roparting)
Rieguiations 2014 .

Motz 1 Significant sccounting policies

{a) Banis of accounting
The @ocrual basis of acoounting has been used in the preparalion of these financial stalements, wheneby assels lisbiiies, equily, income
and axpenses ane necognised in the reporling period lo which fhey relale, mpardiess of when cash is moshed or paid.

Judgements, estimalés and assumplions ane required o be made about The canmying valees of assets and labilities that are nol readily
apparent from ofher sowrces. The estimales and assooioled judgements are based on professional judgement derived from histoncal
experience and various ofher factors thal are beleved o be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual resulls may differ from these
eslimales.

Renvisions to accounting estimates are recognisad in the period in which the asfimale is revised and also in fubure pariods that ane
affected by the revision. Judgements and assumptions made by management in the applicalion of AAS's that have significant effects on
The fmancial stalerments and oshmales relate lo;

i fair vahus of land, buildings, infrastructure, plant and squipment (refer fo nate 1 (m) )
e deterrrinalion of deprecialion for buildings, infrastructure, plant and equipment (refer ta note 1 (n) )
- the determination of employes provisions {refer o note 1 (s} )

Undess offsriss stated, all accounting polickes ane consistent with those applisd in the pricr year, Whare appropriale, comparative
figures have been amended o accord with current preseniaBion, and disclosure has been made of any material changes io

comparalives,
(b} Changes in accounting policies
There have been no changes in acocunting policies from the previous period.

{e) Principles of consclidation
The consolidated financial statermants of Councll incorporate all enfifies confralled by Council as at 30 June 2016, and their incoms and
expenses for that part of the reporfing period in which control existed.

Bubsidianas are all entities over which Councl has conbrol, Councl confrols an antity whean il is exposed lo, o has righls to, vanabila
rabums from its involvament with the enlity and has the ability to affect those returns heough its power to direct the activities of the enfity.
Bubsidianes an fully consolidated from the date on which conirol is transfemed lo the Councl. They are deconsolidated from the dale
fhiat confrol ceases.

Where dissimilar acoounting policles are adopied by entifles and fhair aflaci s considenasd malerial, adiusimants are mada io ansun
consistent policies are adopted in these financial stalemonts,

Page &
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ATTACHMENT NO: 1 - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2015/16 cont. ‘ ‘ ITEM NO: 4.1

Wyndham City Notes to the Financial Report
2015/2016 Financial Report For the Year Ended 30 June 2016

Mote 1 Significant accounting policies (sent'd,)
{c) Principles of consolidation (cont'd.)

In the process of prepaning consclidaled financial stalements all malerial iransactions and balances betwveen consolidaled enfities are
eliminated,

The enfity that is consclidated inlo Council is Weslern Leisure Services Pty Lid, which is fully cened by Wyndham City.  was
eslablshed on 30 April 2014 o manage three of Wyndham Cily's major recrealion lacilifies

{d} Committees of management
Enitifies confralled by Council thal have malsrial revanues, sxpenses, assels or Rabilifies, such as commiliees of managament, ane fo be
included in fhis financial report. Any fransachions bolween these entiies and Counal are then climinated in full. Mo commitizes of
management have been idonlified for Inclusion in thés Bnancial report.

(e) Accounting for investments in associates and joint arrangements

Assoniaies

Associaias are all entifes over which Council has significant influance but not conbrol or joind condrol, Investments in associales are
accouniod for using the oquity mathod of accounting, afier initially being recognisod at cost. No associales have boon identified for
wciusoon in Thes nanceal repord,

Joint amangaments

Irvestments in joint arrangements ane classilied as eifher joint operations or joint venfures depending on the confraciual rights and
obiligaiions each immesior hos, rafher than he legal strecture of the joint aranpement. No imesiment in joint avangements have been
Hentibad for inchusion in this finanolal report.

() Jolnk operafions
Councll racognises Bs direct right fo, and ifs share of joindly held assals, iablifias, revenues and expensas of joint operafions. Thass
have boen incorporated in the financial stalements under the appropriate headings,

() Joint veriures

Interesls in jpint venlures ane accounbed for using the equity method. Under This method, the inlenests are inflialy recognised in the
conschidated balance sheet af cost and adjusied thereafier io recognise Council's share of the post-acquisition profifs or losses and
maovements in other comprehensive income in profit or loss and ofher comprehenshe income respecively,

{f) Revenue recognition
Income is recognisad whan fhe Cowuncll obiains control of the conbribufion ar fha right o receive fha conlribufion, it is probable fhat fhe
economic benefits comprising fhe conribulion will flow fo fhe Councll and fhe amount of the confibufion can be measurad reliably,

Ralas and Charges

Anmaal rales and charges are recognisaed as revenues when Council issuss annual rates nofices.  Supplementary rates ame recognissd
whan a valualion and reassassmant is complatad and a supplamantany rales nolca issuad

Stadubory fees and fres

Slatulory fees and fings (inchading parking fees and fines) are recognised as revenus when the service has bean provided, the payment
Is recefved, or when the penally has been applied, whichever first occurs,

User fees
User fees are recognised as revenie when the serios has been provided or the payment is neceved, whichever firsl ocours.
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ATTACHMENT NO: 1 - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2015/16 cont. ‘ ‘ ITEM NO: 4.1

Wyndham City Notes to the Financial Report
2015/2016 Financial Report For the Year Ended 30 June 2016

Note 1 Significant accounting policies (cont'd.)

{f) Revenue recognition {cont'd.)
Granis

Grant incorme is recognised when Council obiains cantrol of the conbribulion. This ks normally obtained upan their receipt {or acquiltal) or
upon earler nolilication thal a grant has been secured, and are valued at Their fair value ai the dabe of ansler.

Where grants or contribulions recognised as revenues during the financial year were oblained on condition that they be expended ina
particular mannes of used over a particular period and those condiions were undischarged at bakance date, the unused grant or
conlribution is disclosed in Nole 8. The note also discloses the amount of unised grant or conlribulion from prior years Lthal was
expended on Councl's operalions during the current year.

Condributions
Maonatary and non monatary coniribulions ane recognisad as revenus whan Council oblains control over the contnbuted assat

Sala of proparfy, infrasfruciurs, pland and aquipmani
The profit or loss cn sale of an asset is determined when control of the assel has imevocably passed to the buyer.

Infarast
Inlerest is racognisad a8 if is eamed

Dividands
Dividend revanue is ecognised when the Councills right io raceive paymant is astablishad

Ciher incoma
Diher incoms is maasured at the fair value of the considaration received or receivable and is recognised when Council gains conirol over
i right to receive the incoma

(g} Fair valus measurement

Council measures cerlain assels and liabilies ai fair valee whene required or permitied by Australian Accounting Standards. AASE 13
Fair value measurement, aims io improve cansistency and reduce complexity by providing a definition of fair value and a single source of
fair value messuremant and disclosure requirements for use across Australian Acoounting Standards,

AAER 13 defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an assel or paid fo fransier a liabdily in an orderdy ransaction
bebaeen market participants at the measuramenl dale, Fair valus under AASE 13 I8 an exil prios regandiess of whather that price is
direclly cbservable or eslimated using anciher valuation fechnique.

Al assels and kabilties for which fair value s measured or disclosed in the financial stalernenls are categorsed wilhin a Tair value
himrarchy, desoribed as follows, based on the lowes! level inpul thal is significant ko the fair value messuement as a whola:

Level 1 — Quoted {unadusied) market prices in active markels for idenfical assots or habiiios

Lewved 2 — Vahuation echniques for which the lowest level input That is significant i the fair value messunemant is dineclly o indinsclly
obsenable; and

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for whach the lowesl level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.
Forthe purpose of fair vatee desclosures, Council has determined classes of assets and labilites on the basis of the nature,
characleristics and risks of the assel or Kabilily and The level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above,

In addition, Council detarmines whethar fransiers have occurmed betwaan levels in the higrarchy by re-assessing calegaorisation (based
on th lowest level inpul that 15 sgrulicant bo the far value measuremenl as @ whole) al the end of each reporting penod,

(h) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits st call, and other highly liquid investments with original maturilies of 90 days
or lesss, nel of cubstanding bank overdralts.
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ATTACHMENT NO: 1 - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2015/16 cont. ‘ ‘ ITEM NO: 4.1

Wyndham City Notes to the Financial Report
2015/2016 Financial Report For the Year Ended 30 June 2016

Note 1 Significant accounting policies (cont'd.)

i) Trade and other receivables
Receivables ane camed al amorsed cosl using the eflective interes| rale method. A provision for doubtiul debls & recognised when
fhérs is objective evidence thal an impairment has ocoumed.

(i} Other financial asscts

Other linancial assels ane valued al fair value, being market value, al balance dale. Term deposits are measured al amorfised cost. Any
unrealised gains and losses on holdings at balance dale are recopnised s eilher 8 revenus or expense.

(k) Inventories
Irvenionies held for diskibufion are measured at cost adjusied when applicable for any koss of service potenBial. Invenlones ane
measured al the lower of cosl and net realisable value,
All olher eventories, including land held for sale, ane measuned al the lower of cost and net realisable value. Whene imveniones ane
acquired for no cost or nominal consideration, they are measuned al curnent replacement cost al the dale of acquisition.

{1} Nen-current assels classified as held for sale

A non-curreni assel classilied as held for sale (including disposal groups) is measuned af e kewer of iks carrying amount and fair value
leas cosis o sell, and ane nol subjsct 1o depreciation. Mon-curment assels, disposal groups and relajed liabililies and assets ane frealed
2% current and classified as held for sabe if their camydng amount will be recovered through 5 sale fransaction rather than through

continuing use. This condilion is regarded as met anly when the sale is highly probable and fhe assel's sale (or disposal group sale) is
expecied to be completed within 12 months from the date of classification.

(m] Recognition and measurement of property, plant and equipment, infrastructure, intangiblea

Acquisition

Thee purchase melhod of sccounting ks used for all acquislions ol assels, being the lair value of assels provided as consideralion al the
dale of acquisition plus any incidental costs atinbutable to the acquisiion. Fair vakas 8 the amount for which ihe assat could be
exchanged between knowledgeabls willing parfies in an am's lengih fransaciion,

Where assels ane constructed by Counal, cosl incudes all matenals used i cansiruchon, direc! labour and an appropnate share of
dhrecily attnbutatie vanable and fxed overheads.

In accordance with Cound’s policy, the threshold Bmits detaled in Nole 1 (n) have appled when recognising assets within an apphcable
asset class and unless otherwvise staled are consistent with the prior year.

Revaluation

Bubsaquent to the initial recogniion of assets, land, buliding, roads, bridges, off sineel car parks end drainage assets ane measuned at
Thir fair valwe, being the prce thal would be receved to sell an assel or peed 1o fransier a habslity in an orderly ransacton bebseen
markel paricipants al the measurement date. Al balance dale, the Council reviewed the camng value of the indnadual classes of
assets measured ai fair value to ensure thai each assel maierialty approximated is fair value. YWhers the camying vahee materially
differed from fha fair value ai balance dais, fhe dass of assat was revalusd

Fair value valuations are determined in acocrdance with a valuation hierarchy. Changes o the valualion hisrarchy will only ooour if an
extemal change in the restriclions or Emitations of use on an asset result in changes 1o the permissible or praclical highest and besl use
of e assel Further details regarding the tair value hierarchy are discosed st Note 22, Propery, infrastrctune, plant and equipment,
and infrasireciune.

In addition, Council undariakes a formal revalusfion of land, buildings, and infrastructure assels on a regular basis ranging from 2 fo 5
yoars, The valuation is performed either by expafienced coundl ofoers or indopondent experts,

Where the assels are evalued, the revaluation ncrements are credided directy o the assel revalualion reserve axoepl o the extent thal
an increment reverses a prior vear decrerment for that class of asset that had been recopnised as an expense in which case the
Increment is recognised as revenue up fo the amount of the expense, Revaluation decrements are recognised as an expense except
where prios inoremeants are inchudad in the assel revaluation reserve for that class of asset in which cass the decrement is taken o the
resene 1o the extent of the remaining increrments. Within the same class of assels, revaluation increments and decrements within the
year are offsel.
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ATTACHMENT NO: 1 - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2015/16 cont. ‘ ‘ ITEM NO: 4.1

Wyndham City Notes to the Financial Report
20152076 Financial Report For the Year Ended 30 June 2016

Mete 1 Significant acceunting pelicics (cantd.)

{m) Recognition and measurement of property, plant and equipment, infrastructure, intangibles (cont'd.)
Land under roads

Wyndham Caty recognised the vahee of land under roads ) controlled as al 30 Junie 2008 al desmed cosl. Doemed cosl s based on site
values adusied for englobo (undeveloped andfor unsericed) chamaclensbcs, access nghls and pméale inleresls of olber parbes and
enflements of infrastruciure assets and services. Land under roads acquired after 30 June 2008 s brought io acoount using the cost
hasis.

(n) Depreciation and amortisation of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment and intangibles
doprecialed over ther uselul ves bo the Counal in @ manner which reflects consumpbion of thi senice pobenial embodied n those
assels. Estimates of remainang useful ives and residual values are made on a regular basis with magor assel classes reasaessed
Whara assats have ssparals identifiable componants that ane subjact bo reguiar replacement, thess componanis are assigned disiinct
usaful lives and residual values and a saparate deprecialion rabe is determined for each componant.
Siraight ne deprecafion is charged hased on fha residual usaful ifs as datermined each year.

Assat recognition trashalis and darFecatan percas

Depreciation

Period

nfa

20-30 years

50 years

50 years
Plard and Equipment

heritage plant and equipment 10-100 years

plant, machinery and equipmant 410 years

fudtures, biings and fumitura 3-10 ymans

compulers and telecommunications 3-10 yaars

5 years

25 years

55 years

20 yoars

40 years

80 years

40 years

100 years

10-B0 yeans

o o =

lbrary baoks

road surfacs

road base

road unsealed

road kerb and channel

foolpaths and oycleways

recreabonal, beisure and community facilifies

washe management 10-50 years -

parks, cpen space and streelscapes 10-40 years 0

off street car parks 20-40 years -
Intangile assels

landfill air space consumplion -
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ATTACHMENT NO: 1 - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2015/16 cont. ‘ ‘ ITEM NO: 4.1

Wyndham City Notes to the Financial Report
2015/2016 Financial Report For the Year Ended 30 June 2016

Note 1 Significant accounting policies (cont'd.)

(o} Repairs and maintenance
Routine manlenance, repair costs, and mincr renevwal costs ane expensed as incumed. Whene the repair relales o twe replacemenl of a
oompaonent of an assel and the cosl excesds the capilalization ihreshold ihe cost i capitalised and depreciated. The camying valus of
ihe replaced asset is sxpensed.

(p) Impairment of asscts
Al each reporting date, the Councll roviews the camying value of its assols to determing whelher there i ary indicalon that thode assels
have been impaired. [f such an indicalion exists, the recoverable amount of the asset, being the higher of the assel's fair value less costs
o sall and value in use, is compared o the assels canmying value. Any excess of the asseis carrying value over iis recoverable amomnt is
expansad fo fhe comprehansive income siatament, unless the asset is caried at the evaluad amount in which casa, the impairment loss
Is recognised directly against the revalualion surplus in respact af fhe same class of assel io the exiant thal fhe impaimant loss doss not
exoeed the amount in fhe revaluation surplus for thal same class of asset.

{q) Trust funds and depoaits
Amounits recenved as deposits and relenbon amounts controlled by Councal ane recognised as frust funds unbil tey are retumed,
fransfemed i accandance with the purpose of the receipt, or forfeibed {refler lo Nole 25).

{r} Borrowings
Bomowings are inlkally measured al fair value, being the cost of the interest bearing Babilities, net of transaction costs. The
measurement basis subsequent o inilial recognilion has been calegorised as linanceal Eabilties at amorised cosl. The Council
delermines the classification of is inlerest beanng labilties al indtial recognilion,

Borrowing costs
Bormowing cosls ane recognised as an expense in the penod in which they are incumed.
Borrowang costs include mleres! on bank overdralts, mberes! on bormowings, and finance lease charges.

s} Employee coats and benelits
The calculation of employee costs and benefits includes all relevant on-costs and ane calculaled as lollows at reparting dete.

Wages snd salaries snd annusl leave

Liabilfies for wages and salares, including non-monetany banefits and annual leave expacted fo be wholly saftiad within 12 months of
the reporting dabe are recognised in the provision for employes benefits in respect of employes sarvices up to the reporfing date,
classified as curment kabilities and measured al their nomnal values,

Liabiliies that are nof expecied to he whally setfled within 12 manths of the reporing date are recognised in the provision for employes
benafits as cument kabilities, measured at presant valus of the amounts expactad ta be paid when the liabiies are satfled using the
romunenalion rabe cxpectod to apply at the fime of seithement.

Long servive leave

Lisabiilty for long service leave (L3L) i recognised in the provision for employes benafits,

Cument Liabilty - unconditional LSL Is disclosed as a current Rability even when the counoll does not expect fo sotfle the Rabillity within 12
monihs because il will not have the unconditional rghl lo deler setlement of The entiiorment should an ermployes Lake leave wilhin 12
roonkhs

The components of this cument Rability are measuned af .

- presend value - cormponenl that is mol expected lo be wholly seltled withan 12 months.
= nominal value - component that is expected (o be wholly setiled within 12 monihs.

Clasaification of amployes costs

Non-curment iabiity - condiional LEL that has besn accrued, whare an employes is yet io reach a qualifying tarm of employmand, is
disclosed a8 a non - curant Rability. Thare is an unconditional right fo deler satfisment of fhe entilement untl fhe employes has
comploled the requisiie years of serico,

Thiés non-current LSL Rability ks measuned at present value.

Paga 13

Wyndham City Council Special Meeting of Council 12/09/2016 Page 21 of 68
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Wyndham City Notes to the Financial Report
2015/2016 Financial Report For the Year Ended 30 June 2016

Note 1 Significant accounting policies (cont'd.)

{t} Landfill restoration provision
Coungil is obligabed lo resbore the Reluse Disposal Facilily site o a parficular standard.  The lorecast He of the sile is based on curend
eslimatas of remaining capacily and the forecasi rale of infill. The provision for landill resioration has besn calculaied based on the
present value of the expected cost of works to be underiaken, The expected cosl of works has been eslimaled based on curment
understanding of work required to reinstate the sie to a suitable standard. Accordingly, ihe estimafion of fe provision required is
dependani cn the acowracy of the forecast liming of the work, work requined and related costs.

{u) Carbon Tax provision
Council's Carbon Tax liability arcse due to the Federal Government's Clean Enengy Act 2011, which was repealed in July 2014, Councll
collechnd carbon tax io 30 June 2014 for the lilelime carbon emissions thal would be gensraled from wasle deposilted at the landfill. Niow
That The legislation has been repealed, Coundl no longer has an obligation o make further payments under the Clean Energy Act 2001,
The Minister for the Emvirenmenit released the Volundary Waste Induséry Profocol in July 2015 for the handling of early collecied carbon
aharges in the landfill secior. Councll has signed up fo the woluntary projocol, which involves refunding Council customens and wsing fhe
remaining funds for carban abatement projects. This process is expected to be compleded by 30 June 2017,

{v) Leases
Financa Laasas

Wyndham City has not enbered into any finance lease amangements.
Operating Leases

Lease payments for operaling leases are required by the acoounting slandards lo be recognised on a siraight ne basis, ralhar than
expensed in the years in which they are incurned,

{w) Goods and Services Tax [(GST)
Revenies, éxpenses and assels ane recognised net of the amount of GBT, except where the amount of GET incured [s nol recoverable
fromm the Auséralian Tax Office. In these circumstances the GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the assel or as parf of
an item of the expanse. Receivables and payabies in the balance sheet ars shown inclusive of GST.
Cash fiows ane presented in the Stabement of Cash flows on a gross basis, excepl for the GET component of investing and Bnancing
aciivites, which are discicsed as opevating cash Sows.

{x} Contingent asscts and contingent hiabilities and commitments
Contingent assels and confingent liabilites are nol recognised in the Balance Shost, but ane disclosed by way of a nole and, if
quantifeable, are measured at nominal value. Coningenl assets and kabilites are presented inclusioe of GBT recenable or payable

respechvely.
Commilments are nof recognised in fha Balance Sheet. Commilments ara disclosed al thair nominal value by way of nobe and presantad
inclusive of the G8T payabls.

{y) Pending accounting standards
Cariain new AAS' have basn issuad fhat are not mandatory for the 30 Juns 2018 reporing period, Council has assessed fhasa
panding standards and has idenfifiad thal no matarial impact will flow from the application of thesa standands in future reparting pariods

{z) Rounding
Undess ofherwise staled, amounts in fhe financal report have been rounded io the nearest thousand dollars. Figures in the financial
stalemant may not equale due io rounding,
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Wyndham City Notes to the Financial Report
20152076 Financial Report For the Year Ended 30 June 2016

Nete 2 Budget comparison

The budget comparison noles compare Council's financial plan, expressed Ihrough its annual budged, with actual performance. The
Local Governmani (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2044 requires explanation of any makorial variances, Council has applied a
maberiality threshold of the kower of ten percent of §10 million where further explanalion is waranted. Explanations have nol been
provided for variations below the materiality threshold unless the variance is considered lo be malenal because of its nabure,

The budget figures delailed below are those adopled by Council on 22 June 2015, The Budgel was based on assumptions thal were
redevant at the time of adoption of the Budget. Council sets guidelines and paramelors for revenue and expense largets in this budget in
onder to meet Council's planning and financial performance tangets for both the short and long-term. The budget did not reflect any
changes to aquity resulting from asset revaluations, as thelr impacts were not considered prediciable.

These nobes are prepared o meet the requirements of the Local Government Act 1989 and the Local Governmen! (Planning and

Reporting) Regulstions 2044
a) Income and Expendifure

Budget Actual Variance

206 M6 26
§'000 §000 §000 Ref

Income
Rales and charges 162717 161,026 (1,691)
Statifory ees and fines 8552 1,778 1226 1
User fees 69,913 724 2578
Grants - operaling 34847 27 678 s9m) 2
Grants - capital 7,260 10,436 e 3
Contribulions - monatary 13423 33875 0T 4
Contribulions - non monetary 50,000 139823 80,623 §
Met gain on disposal of property, infrastructune, plant and equipment - B2 &
Oither income 4,440 57 moT7
Total income 350,658 463,184 103,526
Expenses
Employvee costs 108,544 111,596 (3,062)
Maberials and sarvices 89,504 101,488 (11885 &
Bad and doubtful debts 100 2,889 @ @
Depreciation and amortisalion 64,027 65,364 (1,337)
Bomowing costs 2885 1,668 1,07 10
Met loss on disposal of property, infrasiructure, plant and aquipment 4,254 - 4354 B
Ciher expenses 028 2002 M
Total expenses 2¥2340 268, 208 (13,B68)
Surplusi{deficit) for the year 87318 178,018 89,658
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Wyndham City Notes to the Financial Report
20152076 Financial Report For the Year Ended 30 June 2016

Nete 2 Budget comparison {cont'd.)

(i} Explanation of material variations
Varance Ref em Explanation
1 Statulory fees and lines The favourable varance wes dus predominanthy 1o higher fees
significant growth expenenced in 201516, Lower subdivision
aclivily was anticipated in setfing the budgel. However,
demand for land m Wyndham heas shown contmued strenglh.
2 Grants - oparaling Oiporating Grants revanue is $5.97m less than budget due o

the aarly recespl of hall of tha 1518 inancal assislance grant
on the last day of the 14715 year, therofore the recogniBion of
thes revenus n 2004015

3 Grants - capial The Granls - Capital resull was better than budgel due lo the
receipt of a number of state and federal grants for buildings,
toads and parks that wers not included in the budget as they
wizie ot confirmmed al tht lime.

4 Coniribufions - monatary Confribufions - monatary are higher than budget due fo a
higher level of Developer Conlribulicns resulting from an
increased rafe of subdivision development.

§ Caonlribulions - non monelary Confribulions - non monetany i significanthy higher than
budget due tothe level of gified assels resulling Trom Bhe
highet than axpecied rale of subdivision development.

8 et gaini{loss) on disposal of property, infrastrectune,  The ned gain of $0.88 million was due lo the sale of vehickes

plant and equipment and plant lems. The budget had assumed a not loss of 54,26
milllion resill from the road assets being reconsiracled.
However, the written down value of renewed road assets was
adusled symnsl the assal revaluabon reserves dus lo the
nature of the works undertaken.

7 Other income The tavourable olher revenue posilion was due 1o higher
inkerest received from the fate payment of rate instalments
{$0.39 milion) and higher interest revenus eamed from cash
inveshed in shor berm deposits (30,32 million).

] Matedals and services Materials and senvices was $12.00 million highor than budget,
dus mostly o landril relabed costs and provisions,

9 Bad and doubtiul dobts Tha variance of bad and doublful debls was due fo a review of
provasoning, based on hesloncal analyses of deld recoveny

10 Bomowing costs The borrowing cost was $1.02 million favourable to budget

mainily due to the laler than anficipated draw-down of the
additional $15 million loan. This $15 million loan was
budgeted fo be drawn early in the financial year 2015-16
however it ocourned at the end of the 201516 financial year,
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Wyndham City Notes to the Financial Report
2015/2016 Financial Report For the Year Ended 30 June 2016

Mote 2 Budget comparison (cont]

b) Capital Werks
Budget Actual Variance

2016 2016 2016

§'000 §000 000 Ref
Property
Land 7455 4,045 3410 1
Land improvements 6,540 8,527 (1,987)
Total Land 13,006 135672 1423
Buildings 27 387 24436 2867 3
Building improvemants 1,397 963 434 4
Total Buildings 28,784 25,358 3,386
Total Property 42779 37,970 1,809
Plant and Equipment
Plant, machinery and equipment 3,143 1,983 1,160 5
Fudtures, fittings and furniture 2,183 213 52
Computers and telecommunicalions 2157 1,5M 586 B
Library books 1420 (1420 T
Total Plant and Equipment 7483 7,106 I
Infrastructure
Roads 19,060 17,786 1212
Bridges 1,800 207 1408 8
Footpaths and cycleways 1,160 2,005 (B55) 9
Drainagea 100 133 (33 10
Recreational, leisure and community faciliies 8,1 6,324 2475 N
Wasle mansagarnent 430 198 a2 1
Parks, open space and sireelscapes 4172 2822 1350 13
Off street car parks 1,645 49 1,154 14
Cither infrastruciure 3,842 5141 (1,209 15
Total Infrastructure 40,990 35,294 5,696
Total Capital Werks Expenditure 91,252 80,369 10,883
Represented by:
Mew asset expenditure 34,804 76,984 5820
Assol renowal expenditure 11,790 14,210 (2,420
Assot expansion expenditure 2M9 2154 565
Assat upgrade expenditure 41,939 35,01 6,918
Total Capital Works Expenditure 91,262 80,369 10,883
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Wyndham City Notes to the Financial Report
2015/2016 Financial Report For the Year Ended 30 June 2016

(I} Explanation of material variations

Variance Ref  Item Explanation

1 Land The budgel assumed thal land would be purchased lor the
conslruction of |son Road theough a compulsoty acquisition
pricess, The acquisiion of this land is now expected o b
finalised in 2016117,

2 Land improvements The higher actual expenditure relates o the timing of the
landfill coll construction. The works wene budgelted lo be
completed over the 2014135 and 2015116 financial years. The
planning stages of the project fook longer than expecied,
resulting in & larger porfion of the expenditura falling into the
201516 financial year.

3 Buildings The Eagle Stadium redevelopment project was delvered for
la=s than assumad in the budget. Also, the planning far tha
Truganina South Kindergarben project has laken longer than
expected with construction now planned for 201617 rather
than 201516 as assumed in the budget

1 Building improvemanis The construclion aspects of the Nesghbourhood Hub
augmentation projact and the upgrade of tha Cultural Centra
have nol commenced and wall noe cccur in 201617

8 Plant, machinery and equipment The variance was due mostly 1o the deferral of the purchase of
a sireat sweeper and five trucks due to thear condition being
better than asumed whan the budget was prapared.

G Compubers and telecommunicahions Lower oxpenditure is due to the imgation control system and
the assot management information sysiem development works
budgeted in 20156 nol progressing as fast as budgeted and
now being completed in 201617,

T Library books The vanance was due to a change in accounting policy in
2014/15, where the cost of replenishing the library collection s
now being capitalised rather than expensed. The 201516
budget was set before this policy change was mplemenied.

8 Bridges The design of the walk brdge over Skeloton Crook has takon
longer than assumed in the budget. The consérucion aspect of
the project vall now be completed in 2016HT.

L Foolpaths and cycleways The highet than budget expendilure was due o a lasger

program of work being completed in 201516 as Counci
received a grant through The Infrastructure Growth Fund lo
install additional bicycle paths.

10 Drainage The higher than budget expenditure was due lo design for
Ballan Road drainage works being undertaken in preparation
for consiruction works to be undertaken in 20161 7. This project
was not in the 201516 budget.

1 Recreafional, leisure and community faciiies  Fawvourable vanance due moslly to the Maiméew Sporting
Resene now being constructed by the estate developer as a
works in kind progect.

12 Wasia managamani The favourabla vanance fo budget was due mostly o the RDF
Waler Mains upgrade project not proceeding n 2015/16 as

. Discussions are shill being fnalised with Cily West
Waler on the available aptions.
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Variance Ref ltem Explanaticn

13 Parks, open space and sireelscapes Favourable vanance mostly due to the Grahams Reserve
progect not proceeding and the Regalta Cove project
consiruction works camying over into 2016717 rather than beang
compleled in 201516 as assurmed in the budget.

14 Off stresst car parks The favourable varance reflects the decision made lo

conatruct an infenm alandard ground level car park for

approxmalely 13 of the budgeled cost. This provides car
ek in fhvee shaorl farm and leaves Bedbility for fhe sife fo be
considered for future Werribes CBD developiments.

15 Other infrastrucure 2015/16 Public Lighting Bulk Bulb replacement expenditure

included works that wera dalayed from the 2014115 budgated
warks program

Paga 19
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2018 2015
£000 £000
Note 3 Rates and charges
Council uses Capital Improved Value (CIV) as the basis of valuation of all properfies
wilhm the muncipal destnct.  The GV ol a property 18 s valuabon of land in addibion o
any improvements 1o fhe land.
The valualion base used o caloulale general rales for 201516 was 536,008 million
(201445 £34.603 million). The 201516 rabe on developed land in the CIV dollar was
0.003302 (014115 0.003215).
General Rales 134,904 12500
MMunicipal charge 445 4,061
Wasle management charge 18,029 17,145
Supplemantary rates and rale adjustments 344 1835
Revenue in leu of rales 157 140
Total rates and charges 161,026 148,272
The dabe of the labest peneral revaluation of kand for rating purposes within the: municipal
district was 1st January 2014, and the valuation was first applied in the rating yoar
commencing 1at July 2014,
Mote 4 Statutory fees and fines
Infringemenits and costs kR 2] 26M
Court recovencs 256 181
Toam planning feas 8,184 6165
Land information cerificaies 205 152
Total statutory fees and fines 11,778 9,150
Mote 5 User fees
Aged and health services 82 BR2
Lisisure canire and recrealion” 11,025 27158
Child canefchildren's programs 2,686 2380
Ragisirafion and olber penmits G4 640
Building services 1.021 L
Wasle management services 48,533 43,558
Cosl recovenss 5607 310
Other feas and charges 2023 &
Total user fees 724 55,644

“Thn increass in Uiser Foes is pimary driven by rovonoe from Westomn Lstsune Benices which kas ot bion in operealion for o full Sinancal

year (Hicke 39)
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2016 2015
000 000

Note & Grants
Granks wone received in respect of the following -
Summary of grants
Commomnwealth funded grants 13,655 25,660
Stale funded granis 24457 M 452
Total 38112 IRV
Operating Grants
Recirrent - Commomneesith Govemnmeni
Vickona Granls Commission GATT 18,488
Recurrent - Siale Govemment
Primary care parinerships 4 128
Aged care 5484 6,653
School crossing supervisors 280 a5
Librarion 1,202 1297
Maternal and child health 2,703 2633
Community salety 68 181
Early Chikdhood & Yaulh 8,758 BA7S
Other » [
Total recurrent operating grants 26,265 38482
Morl-racLTant - Stats Govwemment
Community health 330 1458
Farnily and children 615 116
Emvironmental planning 124 12
Libwary - 1
Sirabegy planning bk i
Recreatson 8 75
Cihier 115 14
Total non-recurrent operating grants 1411 2328
Total operating grants 21,676 T
Capitel Grants
Recurran! - Cormmonmwesith Governmen!
Victona Grants Commission - | ocal Roads i 2175
Roads lo recovesy 2600 805
Total recurrent capital grants 3577 3T
Mor-recurrent - Commonwealth Govemment
Bl 4600 4,500
Non-recurrent - Slale Governrment
Buildings 1,607 1512
Roads 620 574
Foolpaths and cycleways o -
Recrealional, betsure and communily facilities 30 3
Diher 12 ]
Total non-recurrent capital grants 6,856 G
Total capital grants LR T
Unspent grants recelved on condition that they be spent in a specific manner
Balanca at start of year 244 kR F)
Received during fhe financial year and remained unspent at balance dabe 02 2187
Fecaived in price vears and spent during e financial vear 1,688 o883
Balance al year and 1467 FrE)

Page 1
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2018 2015
000 000
Note T Contributions
Monetary 33,875 13,453
Man-manetary 130,823 8,13
Tolal conribulions 173,568 102,589
Contributions of non monetary asseds were recelved in relaion fo ihe folfowing assel dasses.
Land 17247 12,508
Land Under Roeds 10,863 3481
Dvainags 77BN 14,587
Roads Bi. 342 565.238
Ot 253 i)
Tolal non-monetary contribafions 139,823 89,136
Note 8 Net gain/(loss) on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment
Procesds of sale 3697 1.0
Infrastructure sssets transferred 1o VicRoads gl nil value {1677}
Disposal from roads reconstruclion - {13,164)
Otther assef disposals (2835 (2452)
Write down value of assels disposed {2,835) {27,320)
Tolal nel pminffloss) an dmsposal of property, nfrasinecture, plant and equipment 882 {26,299)
Note 8 Other income
Inborast 517 G411
Dividends - -
Tetal ether income B217 BAN
Mole 10 {a) Employes costs
Wages and salaries 84,052 B0.8
WorkCover 2209 1,560
Casual staff 2,966 3068
Suparannuslion 84728 T412
Fringe benelits lax 580 554
Oiher 1M 1.621
Total employee costs 111,506 95,496
Mole 10 (b} Superannuation
Council made actual cash contribufions 1o the following funds in the curren financial vear:
Defined benefit fund
Employer contribulions 1o Local Authorties Superannuation Fund (Vision Super) 500 20
580 [#:]
Employer contribulions payable al reporting dale. - -
Accumulation funds
Employer contribuions to Local Authorities Superannuation Fund (Vision Super) 4,560 4338
Empioyer contnbubons - other hands 2B78 27

.68

6,685

Employer contribulions payable at reporting dale.
Refer 1o note 34 for further information relaling to Council’s superannuation abligations.
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HNote 11 Materials and services

Conlrach payments

Builling mainienance
General mainlenance
Lifdilies

Oifice: adminisiration
Information technology
Insurance

Consultants

Total materials and services

Mote12  Bad and doubtful debts
Parking and other inlnngement debloes
Other debtars
Total bad and doubtful debts

Mote13  Depreciation and amortisation

Property

Plant and agquiprment

Infrastruciure

Total depreciation

Intangible assets

Total depreciation and amorfisation

Refer fonofe 22 and 23 for & more delailed breskdown of deprecialion and emortization
charges

Nole 14 Borrowing costs

Interest - Borowings
Total borrowing costs

Note 16 Other expenses

Audlors’ remunerabon - VAGD - audd of the mancal slalements, performance
slatlement and grant acquitals

Auditors’ remuneration - infernal

Councillors' allcwanoes

Operafing lease rentats

Grants and Conlribulions

Tetal cther expenses

2016 2018
Fo00 000
74730 58870
1,306 68
882 B167
7.563 6,335
1.623 1,547
2418 2880
1,084 1.310
4,803 A557
101,459 B4562
2808 248
[ 24
2,880 2
0,309 9179
4,052 3120
49,405 45,328
£2,856 8,11
2,508 2632
EE B4 61,343
1,868 2058
1,868 2,058
3 =0
243 21
415 409
419 an
1,842 1737
2,002 2,789
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28 2015
Mote 16 Cash and cash sgquivalenis §000 §000
Cash on hand 2 »
Cash at bank 16,888 28230
Termn deposits - 4,000
16,910 32,274
Councils cash and cash equvalents are subjed lo exlernal restmetons thal limil
amounis available for discretionary use, These include;
Unexpended Grants and Subsidies 1,467 244
Trust funds and deposits (Nole 75) 12,100 7.804
Stalutory Reseres 6,350 4,666
Developer Conlribufions 80,650 61,853
Tolkal restricled funds 100,557 76 851
Tokal unresiriclad cash and cash aquivalants {B3,65T) [44,679)
Other financial assets 152,938 85,404
Tolkal unresiricled cash and cash equivalents and Cither financial assels 69,281 40 B25
Intended allocations
Mihough nol exlernally resiricled the following amounts have been allocaled for
speciic fulure purpeses by Council
Cash held to fund carried forwand capilal works 20423 15,738
Tolal funds subject fo intended allocations 20,423 15,739
Reler also 1o Note 18 for details of other inancial assets held by Council.
Mote 17 Trade and other receivables
Current
Rates debtors 13,725 11,627
Spacial rale assessment k4 0
Parking and ofter infringement deblors 5,200 4,728
Provision for doubtful debls - parking and ofher infringements (4.684) (1.881)
Cithar deblors 16,860 16,782
Provision for doubtful debls - other deblors (B85) (633)
Tolal curment irade and other recekalies 30,583 30,662
Mon-current
Bpecial rate schome ] 118
Loains avd advances to communily oigantsalions 1,560 1,560
Tolal non-current irade and clther recaivables 1,630 1,678
Total trade and other receivables R 32,140
a) Ageing of Receivables
Al balancs date other deblors rephesenting financial assels wene past due bul nol
impairad. These amounts retale 10 a numbed of independent customers for whom
thara @ no recen] halory of defaull, The ageng of the Councils rade & other
recoivables (excluding statulory receivables) was:
Current {nok yet due) 1,074 11,418
Past due by up o 30 days 3310 2428
Past due between 31 and 180 days 1387 2,064
Past due between 181 and 365 days k| 81
Past dua by more than 1 year Tor an
Tolal rade & olher recaivaties 16,868 16, r82

Page 24
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2018 205
$000 §000

Mote 17 Trade and cther receivables (Contd)

b) Movement in provisions for doubitful debls

Balance af the baginning of fhe year 2514 2.285

Mew Provisions recognised during fhe year 2010 265

Amotnts already provided for and witlen off as uncollectibe (35) {38)

Ammounks provided for but recovensd during fhe yoar (200 {27)

Balance af end of year 5,340 2514

¢} Ageing of individually impaired Recelvables

Al balance date, other deblors representing financial assots with a nominal value

of 5664, 705 (2015: $6:33,378) were impaired. The amaount of the provision raised

agaimsl these dablors was 5684 705 (2015 $633,378). The indnadually mpainad

debtors have been impaired as a result of their doubtful collection. Many of the

long outstanding pasl dus amounts have been lodped with Councl's debil

collectors or ane on payment amangements.

The ageing of recofvables that have been individually delermined as impaired at

reporing dale was:

Currant {nol yel dua) -

Past due by up lo 30 days -

Past due bebtween 31 and 180 days 5 8

Past due bebween 181 and 365 days 52 28

Past due by more than 1 year B8 508

Tolal Irade & other receivables [ 833
MNote 18 Other financial assets

Term doposits 152,938 85,404

Total other financial assets 152,938 #5404
Note 19 Inventories

Invenionies held for distribution 200 140

Total Inventories 200 140
Mote 20 Non current assels classified as held for sale

Cosl of acquisifion (land) 10,782 i

Total non current assets classified as held for resale 10,782 3
Mote 21 Other assels

Prepayments 936 [

Acerued Incoms 1.330 2514

Total other assets 2,266 320
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Note 22 Property, infrastructure plant and squipment
Summary of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment
A FrerYakoe 3] Jure Flesabusien! For e WOV 3 June M P Valie Xdusne  Flowlisbos’ Accarmaliaind WOV 30 huse
e e e Dejemuicn e s e e Depresamn Firjt]
Land Go6028 113858 1,668  B0B,188 676 461 T.782  G6B.G6TI
Buildings 246,048 3 . 248 360 231,573 4487 227076
Plant and Equipment 45,485 18,881 26,614 42,413 16,445 25,963
Infrastructure 2.301.284 {B.08) 284458 2,008 744 2132 636 (106) 2Z¥E88 1882 832
Work in progress LR 31178 63,237 . 83237
3320045 109078 306,038 3,124 085 3,146,320 - 106 268422 2877792
Summary of Work in Progress
Ciptmeng THF ekl bes Trartier Wraels Ol WF
Buildings 24 848 7.950 (15,367) - 17401
Plant and Equipment 43 a2 (42) i3
Infrastructure 3B 346 8,783 (34,684) . 13,445
Tolal @3,237 18075 {50,133) . HATH
Fage &5
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Note 22 Property, infrastructure plant and equipment [coni'd)

LandandBuildings  NOl®  scaes  spasmeg Ldmesnets U Toslnd wedsgbasegs JESR. PR N pege  TellPrepety
At fair value 1 July 2015 532 563 . 13526 130,372 676,461 1150 200516 20008 2115674 24,848 832,883
Accumulated depreciation al 1 July 2015 - . (F.TB2) . {7,782) {55} [3497) (B45) {4,487} = {12,279}
532,563 .44 130,372 668,679 1,095 19r.019 28,863 22T 07T 24,648 920,604
Movements in fair value
Acquired asaets al fair value 670 - 10,666 16 1131 - 25180 M 2521 7.550 44 552
Conlributed assels al fair value 17247 - - 10,883 28,110 - - - . - 28110
Revaluation incremenis/decraments 113,858 - - - 113,858 {145} {2.681) 2.3 {7, 448) - 108,413
Fair value of assats disposad {s) - (9,150) - (9,155} - - - - - (8,155}
Irnpainmient kxsses recognised in operaling result - - . - - - - . - - -
Translers (530,308) 519547 - - (10,759) - (31582) 31,582 - (15,307} (28,158)
(%08 538) 519547 1,536 10,878 133425 {145}  (16,903) 34,034 17,786 {7,447) 143,764
Movements in accumulated depreciation
Depreciafion and amorisafion - . (3,050) . (3,050) (55} (5.256) (044) {6,260) . (9.310)
Accumulated depreciation of disposals - . 9124 - 9144 - . . - - 8,134
Revaluation increments/decraments . . . . . 110 8.753 1.884 10,757 - 10,767
Transfors - - -
- - 6,084 - 6,084 55 3407 045 44597 : 10,681
At lair value 30 June 2016 134027 9547 15062 141250 809,886 1005 184443 B3,842 248,360 A0 1076647

Accumulated degreciation al 30 June 2018 - - {1,608 - {1,608) - - - - - {1,898)
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Nete 22 Property, infrastructure plant and equipment (cont'd)
Harilage and Plad o dires lilings and Compulers and Tl plant

Plant and Equipment Neta Culicrs mmﬂ farmiiure tolpcopmy. Loy bocks Wk In Progress ﬂﬁ::ﬂ
At fair value 1 July 2015 1911 23184 G468 3481 7.068 43 42 455
Accumulated depreciation al 1 July 2015 {123} (7.922) (1.663) {1,790} (4.944) - (16,444)
1,188 15,2462 4803 1,581 3004 43 28,011
Movements in fair value
Acquired assobs af fair valuo 3 1,078 2842 110 1,262 332 8,667
Rewvaluation increments/decrements -
Fair value of assets disposed - (2.241) (&01) . . . (3,142)
Impainment losses recognised in operating result . * . . - .
Translers - . . . = {42} (42)
3 (263) 1841 110 1282 290 ERTE]
Movements in accumulated depreciation
[epreciation and amoriisation {12) (2.483) (Bs0) (378} (350) - {4,053)
Accumulated depraciation of disposals - 1,240 376 - . - 1,616
Impainment losses recopnsed in operaling resull - - - - - - .
(17 (1.229) @74 (3ie) __ (30) - @2A3T)
At fair value 30 June 2016 1314 2254 8,408 3,581 8,260 333 45828
Accumulated deprecialion al 30 June 2016 {135) {B.145) (2.138) {2,168} (5,284) - (18,881}
i k] EEN i [ B ] 1453 1EER ik k] 26,847
Fage it
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Note 22 Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment (cont'd)

and Reeeational, oy Pakmope o eetcr  Ofher Work In Total
Infrastructure e Bidges  [OObsthe Danage  lebsureand g wweand O S , ot
At fair value 1 July 2015 1454 191 66,2095 85,131 383939 32814 2357 32190 4,546 20,787 BME  2ATOETE
Accumulated depreciation al 1 July 2015 (128,383) (8.058) (23.738)  (56.324) (8.8335) {434} (4,6:98) (1.922) (4,303} - (239,698)
1,325 8048 58237 56,362 AT A6 42,070 1,823 7 402 32,804 16 462 38346 193178
Movements in fair value
Acquired assobs af fair valuo 30,531 - 12,112 1,108 6,230 - 4.7 324 5,621 0,703 T2 867
Confributed assets al fair value 81,342 2530 27 B4 111,713
Revaluation incremenls/decrements . . * . . - . * . . -
Fair value of assets disposed . . 0 . {1.528) . (41} (BB3) {81} . {2,643}
Irpatmret o neoogrised in fesol Realuntion Resesve (11,325) . (148) . . - - . - - {11,471}
Transfars . - . . - - - . - (34,6684) (34,694)
100 548 2530 11,866 28,850 4,102 - 4208 2 5540 (24.801) 135,772
Movements in accumulated depreciation
Depreciation and amorisation (36.318) (857) (2301)  (2860)  (2573) {70} (1.411) (893) (1.114) - (49,497}
Revalualion increments/decrements - - - - - - - - - -
Accumulated depreciation of disposals il - ] - 1,248 - i 48 1] - 1,358
Irpainment Insses recogrised in Assel Revaluation Resssve 331 - 50 - = = - . - = 3,380
Transfers . - . . . . . . . . -
(32,997} (85T) (2242)  (3960)  (1.3M) 7o) {1400) (B4T)  (1.064) (44,761)
At fair value 30 June 2016 1,554,738 68 825 87087 412888 57516 2,357 36,206 arorr 26,307 13445 2,206,648
Accumulated depraciation at 30 June 2015 (161,380) {B.915) (27,881)  {B0.284)  (11,158) {504} {5.098) (2.758) |5,369) . {284,453)
1,383,358 59,910 68116 352606 45,357 1,853 30,788 34,308 20,938 13,445 2022189
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Mote 22 Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment (cont'd)

Valustion of tand and buikings

Waluafion of land and buildings were undertaken by a qualified independent valuer Alin Lee (valuer registration no.
G2044). The valuation of land and buidings i &t fair valee, being markel value based on highest and best use

permibied by relevant land planning provisions, VWhere land use is restricled through exisling planning provisions the
valuation bs neduced to reflect this imilation. This adjustment is an unobsenvabie input in the valuation. The adjustment
has no mmpac an the surplus foe the year in the compreshansive incomes slalemeant

Lewvel 2 assats include non specialised land and non specialised buildings and ane valued based on cbservabie inpuls
such as comparabla marksl sales

Dutalls of the Councills land and buildings and information about the fair value hierarchy @s at 30 June 2016 are as
follows:

Level 1 Lievel 2 Level 3
Land - 134,027 519547
Land Improvements - - 13,354
Buildings - 63,842 184,413
Heritage Buildings - 1,005 }

Taital - 188,974 T XM
Vaduafion of infrastruciure
Valuahon of mirasbructure assels has been delemined in accondance with a valuation undertaken by Wiyndham City

The valuation is at fair value based on replacement cost less accumulated depreciation as at the date of valuation.
Dty of the Councils infrastruciuns and information about fhe (air value heerarchy as at 30 June 2016 ans as Tollows:

Lewel 4 Lewel 2 Level 3
Roads . - 1,353,359
Eridges - - 50910
Frotpaths and cycleways - - 69116
Drainage - - 352 605
Ttal - - 1,674 600

Mioba that land under rads is excluded from the table above as it is valued at deemed cost. (Reder fo Note 1mj)

Description of significant unobservable inpils info fevel 3 valafions

Specialised buildings are valued using & deprecialed replacement cost lechneue. Significant unobsenvable inputs
include fhe current replacement cost and remaining useful lves of buildings. Current replacement costa is calculabed
O @ squane metre basis and ranges from 3450 to §5,000 per square metre. The remaining useful lives of buildings are
delarmned on the basts of tha current condibion of buildings and vary from 13 years lo 50 years, Replacemsnl cosl s
sanstiive 1o changes in market conditions, with any increasas or decreass in cost Sowing through 1o the valuation. Usaful
lives of bulkdings ane senaifive ko changes in expectaiions or requirements that could efther shoren or extend the useful
livas of tuildings

Infrasiructure assefs arc valued based an the deprocialed replacoment cost.  Significant unobservalile inputs
include fhir curment replacement cost and remaining uselul lves of infrasireciune. The remaining wselul ves of
Imfrastruciurs ssels are determined on the basis of the curment condilion of the asset and vary from 6 years o 100
vears. Replacement cost s sensifive o changes in marked condifions, wilh any increase or decrease in cost flowing
through o the valuaion. Useful Bves of infrastructune are sensitive 1o changes in use, expecialions cr reguirements that
could sifher shorben or exdand the useful lives of infrastruciure asseis.
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2016 2015
£000 £'000
Mote 23 Intangible assets
Software 5,116 6.6
Landfill air space 5,774 o7
Work in progross i -
Total intangible assots 11,967 7,193
BoMware Landfill Work in
progross Total
£'000 §'000 £'000 £'000
Gross carrying amount
Balance at 1 July 2014 8,012 14,021 1,216 21,248
Additions from internal developments and acquisitions 2,666 . . 2,666
Other . (9,848) {1,215) {11,063)
Ralance at 1 July 2015 Bame 4173 - 12,851
Aaditions froem intarnal developments - 8,208 - 8,208
Additions from acquisifions a7 - - a7
Other - {4,173) 7 4,006)
Balance at 30 June 2015 5675 5,208 m 15,961
Accumulated amortisation and impairment
Balance at 1 July 2014 1,704 3,786 5490
Amortisation expense [ (590) - 168
Balance at 1 July 2015 2482 315 - 5,658
Amorisation expense 1,007 {2.761) - {1,664)
Batance al 30 June 2015 3,559 435 3,994
Met book value at 30 June 2015 526 arr . 7192
Net book value at 30 June 2016 5116 5714 T 1,967
2018 2015
£'000 §'000
Note 24 Trade and other payables
Trade payables 4283 4 659
Accrued expenses 17,662 18,308
Total trade and other payables 21,945 27,967

Page 3

Wyndham City Council Special Meeting of Council 12/09/2016 Page 39 of 68



ATTACHMENT NO: 1 - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2015/16 cont. ‘ ‘ ITEM NO: 4.1

Wyndham City Notes to the Financial Report
20152076 Financial Report For the Year Ended 30 June 2016

2016 2015
000 §'000

Mote 25 Trust funds and deposits
Refundable deposils 10,367 5,8M
Fire: services lovy 1,629 1,529
Retention amounts 20 504
Total trust funds and deposits 12,100 7,904

Purpose and nafure of items

Refundable deposils - Deposits are taken by Councl as a form of surely in a number of circumstances, ncuding in
refation to building works, tender deposits, contract deposits and the use of civic faciiities

Fire Service Levy - Council is the collechion agent for fire senvices levy on behalf of the State Government. Council
remits amounts received on a quarterly basis, Amounts disclosed here will be remitied to the state govemment in line
with that procesa

Rebention Amounts - Council has a confractual nght ko relain certain amounts unfil a contracior has met cedain
requirements or a relabed warrant or defec! penod has elapsed. Subject to the salisfactory completion of the conlraciual
obligations, or the elapsing of time, these amounts will be paid to the relevant confractor in line with Council's

conbrachual obligations.
Note 26 Provisions
Employee Landfil Other Total
restoration

2018 5'000 §'000 s'oon §'000
Balance at beginning of he financial year 18,884 12097 8,493 40,374
Additional provisions 14,729 13,863 - 28,602
Amounts used (12,095) - (2,108) (14,198)
Increase in the discounted amount anising because of
fime and the effect of any change in the discount rate {619) i#) R {621
Balance at the end of the financial year 20,893 26,852 6,330 54,141
M5
Balance at baginning of the financial year 17,490 12,406 8,066 ar.e62
Adkditional provisions 9,062 569 582 10,203
Amounts used 7,056) (350) (155 (@561
Increase in the discounled amount ansing because of
fime and the eflect of any change in the discount rate {603) 372 - {231)
Ralance at the end of the financial year 18,864 12,887 8,493 40,374
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Mote 26 Provisions (cont'd)

{a) Employes provisions
Current provisions expected to be wholly setiled within 12 months

Annual leave
Long service leave

Current provisions expected to be wholly settled after 12 months
Annual leave
Long semice leave

Total cumrent provisions

Men-current

Long service leave

Annual leave

Total non-current provisions

Aggregate carrying amount of employee provisions:
Current

Mon-cument

Tolal aggregate camypng amouni of employes prowvisiona

The following assumptions were adopled in measuring the present value of employee benelits

Weighled average increase in employee costs
Weighted average discount rales
Weighted average setlement penod

(k) Landfill restaration

Current
MNan-cumant

The lollowing easurmplions were adopled in measuring the present value of landill restoration

Weighted average increase in costs
Weghted average decount rales
Weighted average settlement penod {years)
{e) Other provisions - carbon tax
Current

Mon-curment

2016 2015
£'000 £'000
6,343 5728
-] 526
7472 6,254
a06 843
BAM 8,141
8,400 8584
16,572 15,237
4327 3647
4327 3647
16,572 15,237
4327 3647
4.13% 4.440%
1.75% 253%
13 years 13 years
26,862 12,897
26,852 12,997
1.60% 2.30%
167% 227
] ]
5,880 -
- 7
5,880 7511
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Mote 26 Provisions (cont'd)
{d) Other provisions - sundry creditors

Current
Mon-curmant

Mote 27 Interest-bearing loans and berrowings

Current
Bomowings - secured (1)

Mon-current
Borowings - securad (1)

Total

{1) Borrowings are secured by a morigage over general ratos.
a) The maturity profile: for Councif's borrovings is:

Mol later than one year

Laler than one year and not kater than five years
Laler than five years

Page 34

2016 2015
£'000 £'000
0 582
510 582
55,000 40,000
55,000 40,000
56,000 40,000
55,000 40,000
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Mote 28 Reserves
Balance at
beginning of Increment Balance at end of
reperting period {decrement) reperting periad
(a) Asset revaluation reserves £'000 £'000 'o0o
2016
Property
Land 295,01 113,858 408,886
Buildings 29671 3 32 987
324,699 117,168 441,868
Infrastructure
Roads 836,601 (8,004) 827 667
Bridges 48254 - 48,254
Footpaths and cycleways 18,509 (87) 18422
Drainage 113,786 - 113,786
OHf street car parks 12,045 - 12,045
Other infrastructure - - =
1,028,285 8.081) 102,190
Total assst revaluation resarves 1,352 984 109,078 1,462 062
2015
Property
L 206,028 - 295,028
Buildings 286M - 261
424,696 . 324 698
Infrastructurs
Roads 835,797 {108) B35,691
Bridges 48,754 - 48,254
Footpaths and cycioways 18,509 - 18,609
Dranage 113,786 . 113,786
Off street car parks 12,044 . 12,045
Other infrasiructure
1,028,3H (106) 1,028,285
Tatal asset revaluation reserves 1,353,090 {106) 1,352,984

The asset revaluation reserve is used fo record the increased (net) value of Gouncil's assels over ima.
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MNole 28 Reserves (Conl'd)
Balanee af  Tramsferfeem  Transferts  Balanee af end
beginning of  accumuinted ascemulated af reparting
reparting perisd surplus surplus perind
F000 F000 §000 F000
{b) Other reserves
2016
Asset replacement and development reserves £8.048 36718 (17.200) 83467
Total Other reserves 68,549 36,718 {17,200) 83,457
205
Asset replacerment and development reserves 61.253 17,435 (8.7 68040
Total Other reserves £1,253 17,435 8,730) 63,949

Mote 29

Note 30

The purpose of the Assel Developmenl Resenve is lo assist in the construction of new infrastructune o meel the growing needs of

the: munécipality.

The Asset Replacement Resarve is established to fund the replacement of non standand streot lighting and the Victoria Uiniversity

of Technology Afhbatics Track.

Reconciliation of cash flows from operating activities to surplusi{deficit)

Surplus/{dehcil) for the year
Decreciaion/amortisats

Profitloss) on disposal of propedy, infrastructure, plant and

equipment

Coniributions - Non-monefary assets

Finance cost

Change in assels and liabilities:
(Incnaasapdecraases in trade and other recenvables
Decrease in prepayments
Increase/{decreass) in accrued income
Increasef{decreass) in trade and ofher payables
Increase/fdecraase) in tnesl and deposits
[Decreasa)increase in other liabiilies

| Increasepdecrease in invenlonies
IncreasafDecreasa) in provisions

Finance cost

Mt cash provided byf{used in) aperaling activities
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalenis

Cash and cash equivalents (see nole 18)
Less bank overdratt

Financing arrangements
Cradil card tacility

Lisad facilties
Linusad faciitios

2016 016
§000 §'000
176,976 00,264
65,364 B1,343
(BE2) 26209
(135,823) (89,135
1,868 2058
118 {2.185)
B4 (1.3
1836 641
{6.887) 1,225
4,108 (658)
(B0) (n
16,767 2567
B AET 100,110

525 825
(120 (106}
405 418
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Note 32 Commitments

The Council has entered into the followang commitments
Later than 1 year Later than 2 years
Mok lster than 1 and not later than and not later than

Later than

2016 year 2 years Syears  5ycars Total
§'000 §000 §000  §'000 §000
Operating
Open space management 1,740 1,581 294 6,235
Consultancies 1,409 05 985 7181
Cleaning conltracts for council buildings 20 2,080 4,869 9,000
Other 368 264 353 986
Total 5,659 431 [EF7] 18,402
Capital
Property 13325 13,325
Plant and Equipment 14M 14T
Infrastructure 13,18 13,161
Total 847 27,47
Later than 1 year Later than 2 years
Mot later than 1 and not later than and not later than  Later than
205 yoar 2 years Bycars G ycars Total
£'000 $'000 §000  $'000 $'000
Operating
Open space managemant 436 114 - 550
Cansultancies 198 407 % 1,303
Cleaning contracts for council buildings
1,954 529 522 3,005
Meals for delivery 280 148 102 530
Total 3468 1,198 [ G368
Capital
Froperty 15541 16 541
Plarit and equipment 2,166 2,168
Infrasiructure 16,378 16,378
Total 34,085 34,085
Page 37
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Mote 33 Operating leases
{a) Operating lease commitments
Al the reporfing date, the Councl hed the following obiigations under non-cancellable
Council's activibes (these obligations are nol recognised as kabilities):

Mt lates than onme year 362 an
Labor than one year and not later than five years 185 528
Later than five years -

(b) Operating lease receivables

The Council has entered into commercial property leases on its property, consisting of

surplus frechold office complexes. These properties hold under operating leases can
hawe remaining lease ferms of between 1 and 10 years,

Futura rimimum rentals receivable under non-cancellable operating leases are as

follows:;

Mot later than one year a2

Laber than one year and nol laber than five years -

Laber than five years - -

B8

Note 34  Superannuation

Council makes the majority of its employer superannuafion coniribubions in respect of its employees bo the Local
Authorities Superannuation Fund (the Fund). This Fund has two categonies of membership, accumulation and defined
benefit, sach of which is funded differently. Obligations for confributiona to the Fund are recognised as an expensa in the
Comprehansive Income Stalemant when they are made or dus

Accumulation

The Fund's aceurmulafion calegories, Vision MySuper/\fision Super Saver, recetva bath employer and employes
contnbulions on a progressive basis. Employer contributions ane nomally based on a fved percentage of employes
earmings (for the year ended 30 June 2018, this was 5.5% as required under Superannuation Guaraniee legisiation).

Councl does not use defined benefit accounting for ks defined benefl obiigations under the Fund's Defined Beneli
calegory. This is because the Fund's Defined Benedit calegory is a pooled multi-employer sponsoned plan,

Thens i no proporbonal split of the: defined benedt labilibes, assets or costs between the particpating employers as the
defined benafit obiigation is a floating cbigabon between the participating employers and the only time that the aggregale
obligation ks allocaled o specific employers s when & call is made. As a resull, the level of participalion of Councl in the
Furd cannot be measured & a percentage companed with other parficipaling employers. Thenefore, the Fund Actuary is
unable fo allocate benefit liabiifies, assets and costs bebween employers for the purposes of AASE 119,

Funding arrangements
Council makes employer confribubions fo the Defined Benedfit category of the Fund al rates determined by the Trusies on
the advice of the Fund Actuary.

A at 30 Juna AHB, an interim actuarial investigation was held as the Fund provides Motime pensions in the Defined
Benefit category. The vested benefit index (VIBI) of the Defined Benefit calegory of which Councll is a coninbuting
employer was 105.8%. To delermne the VBI, the fund Actuary used the following long-term sssumplions:

Page 38
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Met investment refurns. 7.0% pa
Salary information 4.25% pa
Price inflabion (CPT) 2.5% pa.

Vision Super has advised that the estimated VBI at 30 June 2016 was 1029%. The VB is to be used as the primary funding
indicalor. Because the VBl was above 10056, the 2045 intenim actuarnial imestigation determined the Defined Beneft
calegory was in a salisfactory financial position and that no change was necessary io the Defined Benelit calegony's
funding arangements from pror years.

Employer contributions

Regular contributions

On the basis of fhe results of the 2015 inlerim acluanial investigafion conducted by the Fund Actuary, Council miakes
employer confribubions fo the Fund's Defined Benefit category at rates delermined by the Fund's Trustee. For the year
ended 30 June 2016, this rale was 9.5% of members' salaries (9.5% in AH472M5). This rate will increass in line with any
increasa to the contribution rate. in addtion, Councll reimburses the Fund to cover the excess of the benefits paid as a
consequence of retrenchment above the funded resignation or relirement benefit.

Funding calls
If ther Diefined Benefit category is in an unaatistaciory financial position at an actuanial investigation or the Defined Benedit
calegory's VB is below its shorifall it at any time other than the date of the actuaral investigation, the Delined Beneht
calagory has & shortfall for the purposes of SPS 160 and the Fund is required fo put a plan in place so that the shortfall is
fully funcled within three years of the sherifall cecurring. The Fund monilors its VBI on a quarterly basés and the Fund has
sol its shortfall imét at 7%,

In thee event that the Fund Actusry delermines thal fhere is a shorifall based on tha above requirement, the Fund's
parficipating employers (including Councl) are required fo make an employer contribuficn bo cover the shortfall. Using the
agreed methodology, the shorfall amount is apportioned bebween the participating employers based on the pre-1 July
1593 and post-30 June 1993 service kabilifies of the Fund's Defined Benedit category, together with the employer's payroll
at 30 June 1393 and at the dale the shorfall has been calculabed,

Due fo the nalure of the confraclual obligations between the parlicipaling employers and the Fund, and thal the Fund
inchudes lifetime pensioners and their reversionary beneficiaries, it is unliehy that the Fund vall be wound up. Hihere s a
surplus in the Fund, the surplus cannot be retumed fo the paricipating employers. In the event that a participating
employer 13 wound-up, the defined bencfit obgabons of that employor will be transfermed o that employer’s successor.

2015 Interim actuarial investigation surplus amounts

The Fund's interim achuanal mveshigation as al 30 Juna 2015 identfied the following in the defined banefi catagory of
which Council is a conlribufing employer:

A VBl surplus of $130.8 million; and

A fotal serviee Fabdly surphes of $239 million.

Tha VB! surplus maans thal the markat value of the fund's assats supporting the dafined benefit obligations excead the
vesled benefits fhat the defined banefl mermbers would have been antilied to if they had all exited on 30 June 2015. The
tolal service liabiily surplus means fhal the curmenl valoe of the assels in the Fund's Defined Benefil category plus
eoxpeched fubure conributions exceeds ihe value of expected fulure benefits and expenses. Council was nolified of the 30
June 2015 VB! during August 2015,

Future superannuation contributions
The expecied contnbutions to be paid to the Defined Benefit category of Vision Super for the year ending 30 June 2017 s
8677,119.
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Maote 35  Contingent liabilities and contingent assets
Contingent labilities

Councl has obigations under a defined benafil superannuation scheme that may resull in the need fo make addibonal
contnbulions bo the scheme, malters relating lo this polental chigation are outined in Mole 34, As a resull of the volatility
in financial markets the ikelivood of making such contributions in fulure penods exsts. Al this point in time it is not known
if additional contribufions will be required, thedr fiming or patential amount.

Councl operales a landill. Council is required fo cover the remedial aclion cost in the unlikely event of polenfial pallufion
of the environment. Al this moment, the amount of this obligation cannot be measured with suficient reliability.

Contingent assets

Wyndham Cily acquires infrastructure assels, such as local roads, footpalhs, kerb and channel and drains ele, from
dovelopers, as subdiasional contnbubions.  The amount and value of assets acquined depends on the size of the
devedopment and the lovel of growth within the municipality. Councl estimates 5185 milion of subdnvesional contribution
from developers in future years. The ashmale i based on the number of subdiisions as at 30 June 26, thal have
comirinied that Wyndham City will acquira over tie using the average value of fhe subdivisions that were recognised in
Ao 201520 B finasroial yesar,
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{a) Objectives and policies

The Council's principal financial instrements comprise cash assets, ferm deposits, receivables (excluding statutory recefvables),
payables (excluding statutory payables) and bank bomowings. Detaits of the significant accounting policies and mothods adoptod,
Including the crileria for recognition, the basts of measurement and The basis on which income and expanses ane recognised, in
respect of each class of financial asset, financial lability and equity instrurment s disclosed in Note 1 of tha financial stalements.
Risk managomant is camied out by senior management under policies approved by the Council. These policies include identification
and analysis of tha risk exposure o Council and appropiate procedures, conbrols and risk minimisafion,

(b} Market risk

Markot risk ks the risk that the fair value of fulure cash fows of our financial instrumants will Tucluate becauss of changes in market
prices. The Council's exposuras io markst risk is prmarnily through nbarast rabs risk with anly insignificant exposure to olhar prics
risks and no exposure o foreign currency risk.

Interast rate risk

Interest rate risk refiers bo the risk that the value of 3 inancial instrument or cash flows associated with the instrurment will luciuate
due o changes in market interest rates. Our interest rabe Rability risk arises prirmarily from fong term loans and bomowings at foed
rales which exposes s o fair value inlerest rale risk. Cash flow inlerest rate risk is the risk that the fulure cash fiows of a financial
instrument will fuctuate because of changes in market inlerest rales, Council has minimsal exposune to cash flow inferest rabe risk
thirotigh its cash and depesits thl ane at fioaling rale.

Investment of surplus funds ks made with approved financial insitutions under the Local Government Acl 1589 . We manage
Indenaat rade risk by adopling an investment policy thal ensunes:

- diversification of investment produc,

= monitoring of relurn on investment, and

- benchmarking of returns and comparison with budgst.

There has been no significant change in the Council's exposure, or its objectives, policies and processes for managing inferest rate
risk of the methods used o measure (his nisk from he previous reporling period,

Interest rale movemeants have not bean sufciantty significant during the year io have an impact on the Councis year end rasullt

{c) Credit risk

Crecil risk is the nisk thal a contracling entity »il not complete its obligations under a financial instrement and cause us lo make a
financial loss. W have mposurne o credit risk on soma financial assets indudad in our balance shoet. To help manage this risk:
-'we have a palicy for establishing credil limits for the enlifies we deal wilh;

- wa may requine collaleral whene appropriate; and

=we only imvest surplus funds wilh financial instilutions which have a recognised credit raling specified in our investment policy.
Recaivabies consist of & lane nmber of customers, spread Across the ralepayer, business and government Saciors, Craoi risk
associabed with the Council's financial assels s minimal because the main deblor is secured by a charge over fhe raleable property.

There are no material financial assets which are individually determined to be impaired.
We may also be subject fo credit risk for transactions which are not included in the balance sheet, such as when we provide a
guaraniee for another party, Details of our contingent liabilities ane disclosed in nole 35,

The maxdmum exposune 1o crsdit risk al the reparting date lo recognised financial assets is The carmying amounl, net of any
provisions for impairment of those assels. as disclosed in the balance sheat and notes io the financial statements. Council doas
not hold any collateral
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Mate 38 Financial lnstruments (cont'd.)

() Liquidity risk

Licyaidity risk includes the risk that, 48 a resull of our operalional Equidily requinerments or we will not have suficient funds to setlhe &
transacion when required, we will be forced fo sell a financial assef at belovw value or may be unabla io setile or recover a financial
assel.

To help reduce thess risks Councll;

- has a liquidity policy which targats a minimum and everage hovel of cash and cash equivalents 10 be maintained;

= hias readily accessible standby facilies and cther funding arrangements in place;

- has a liquidity porticlio structure that requines surplus funds 1o be invesled wilhin various bands of liquid insiraments;

- monitors budget to actusal performance on a regular basis; and

- sots limits on bormowings relafing 1o the percentage of loans to rale revenus and percentage of loan principal repayments o rale
revenue,

The Council's meximum exposure o liquidity risk is the camying amounts of financial liabities as disdiosed in the face of the
balance shest, and & deemed insignificant based on prior periods’ data and cument assessmeni of risk.

Thera has been no significant change in Councl's exposure, or its objectives, policies and processes for managing liquidity risk or
the mefhods wsed o measure this risk from the previous reporing period.

With the exceplion of bormowings, all financial Babilities are expecied o be setiied within nomeal terms of iesde. Delails of the
maturity profile for bomowings ane disclosed at Mole 27,

) Fair value
Fair valhie hieranchy
Kabilifes ane measured al amortised cost.

{f) Sensitivity disclosure analysis

Taking into account past performance, fulure expectalions, economic forecasts, and managerment’s knowledpge and experiance of
the financial markets, Council believes the following movements are reasonably possible’ over fhe nesd 12 montfs:

- A paralial shift of +1.0% and -1.0 % in market inlenest rales (AUD) from year-end rales.

These movemeants will nol have a malanal impact on the valuation of Councl's financial assets and labilibes, nor will they have a
miaherial impact on the results of Council's operations.
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Nete 37 Related party transactions
{i} Responsible Persons
Mames of perscns holding the position of a Responsible Person at the Councll at any time
during the year ane
Councillors Adce Hegodich (Mayor: Oct 2015 lo current)
Peter Maynard (Mayor: Jul to Oct 2H5)
Gautam Gupla
Glenn Goodfiellow
Heather Marcus
Itk Khan
John Gibbons
Marie Brittan
Michele Whasrie
Petar Gibbons
Robert Fairclough
Chief Executive Officer Hemy Thompson (Jul o Aug 2015)
el Girigabry (Aug 2015 to curren)
(il  Remuneration of Responsible Persons

The numbers of Responsible Persaons whoss lolal remunerabon from Councl and amy
relabed enfitios, axcluding reliremaent banefits, fall within the following bands:

$30,000 - $30,000
$80,000 - $80,000
$230,000 - 239,999
$370,000 - 5379,806
$380,000 - $380,000

Total Remuneration for the reporting year for Responsible Persons included above

amounted io;

2016 2015
No. No.
1 1
8 8
1 -
. 1
1 1
1
b
. 1
73 12
1,025,374 790,633
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iy Senicr Officers Remuneration

(i)

Naote 38

A Senior Officer other than a Responsible Person, is an officer of Council whao:
) has management responsibilities and reports direclly 1o the Chiel Executive; or
b} whose total annual remuneralion exceeds 5138,000

Thee number of Senior Oificers other than the Responsible Persons, ane shown below in their relevant income bands:

2016
Incoime Range: No.
$130,000 - 5139920 2
$140,000 - $149,990
$150,000 - 5169,999
$160,000 - 169,920
$170,000 - $179,990
§180,000 - 5189,999
$190,000 - 199,920
$200,000 - 209,999
$230,000 - 5239 ,999
§240,000 - 5249959
$250,000 - 5250999
$260,000 - 5269999
270,000 - 5279,999
$360,000 - 5369.950
$380,000 - 5389.999
S460,000 - 5469,999
$480,000 - 5489.950
$550,000 - 5559999

h —_
o= W S

—

5
No.

P
W B odn = R OB

2

q-—h-—h-—ﬁl-—h-ﬁl-ﬁl-—h-—h

Total Rermuneration for the reporting year for Senior Officers incleded above, amounted o § 8,636 897

Responsible persons retiremant benafits

§ 6451881

Mo retirement benefits have been made by Wyndham City o a Responsible Person during the reporing year (2015 - NIT.

Loans to responsible persons
Mo lans have been made by Windham Cily lo a Responsible Person during the reporting year (2015 - Nil).

Transections with responsible persons

During the period Council enfered into the Tollowing transactions with responsible persons or related parlies of responsible

SO,
2016

§
Tim Marcus Family Trust - photography services 11,565
Squires Coaches Ply Lid - shulile bus services 1.110

Events occurring after balance date
Mo mathers have occurmed after batance date that requite disclosune in the financial reporl.

2015

3
%506
4,985
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Note 39 Investment in Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries

Weslem Leisure Services Ply Lid.

Westam Leisure Sendcos was croafed by Wyndham Cify fo manage three
of ifs major recreation facilities and Is filly owned by Wyndham City.

Summarised financial information
2M6 2M5
£'000 §'000
Summarised statement of comprehensive income
Total income 11,562 2488
Total ckpenses {10,801) (2,727
Surplusi{deficit) for the year 161 (239)
Other comprehensie ncome - -
Total comprehensive result 761 {239)
Summarised balance sheet
Current assets 3,032 2400
Mon-current assots - -
Total assels 3032 2400
Current liabilifes 1,994 2135
Mon-current habilibes 16 4
Total liabilties 2010 2,130
et Assets 1,022 %1
Summarised statement of cash flows
Met cash provided by / (used in) operating activitics arg 1,780
Met cash provided by / (used in) mvesting acthaties - -
Mat cash prowided by / {used in) financing actiibies - a00
Met increase | (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents s 2,250
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Wyndham City
201572076 Financial Report

Certification of the Financial Statements

In my opinion the accompanying financial stalements have been prepared in accordance with the Local Governmaen! Act
1089, the Local Govemmend (Flanning and Reporfing) Regulations 2014, Australian Accounting Standards and ofher
mandalory professional repording requiramants

Stavan [ambarf

Principal Accounting Officer

Date :

45 Princes Highway, Werribee, Vicionis

In our oginion the accompanying financial stalements peesent fairly the financial transactions of Wyndham Cily Council for
the year ended 30 June 2016 and the financial position of the Council as af that dale.

As at the dale of signing, we am not aware of any circumatances which would render any particulars in the financial
slatements 1o be misleading of inaccurate.

We have been authorised by the Councll and by the Local Governmend (Flanning and Reparting) Regulations 2014 1o
cadfily the financial stabements in thear final fom,
Adele Hegedich

as%wmm

Gilenn Goodlalow, GAICD

45 Princes Highway, Warribee, Victoris

Kalty Grigsby
Chief Executive Officer

#b Princes Highway, Waribee, Vicloria
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WYNDHAM CITY
PERFORMANCE STATEMENT

For the Year Ended 30 June 2016
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Performance Statement
For the year ended 30 June 2016

Description of municipality

The City of Wyndham is located on the western edge of Melbourne, batween the metropolitan area and Gealong.
Wyndham covers an area of 542%km and leatures 21 4km of coaslimea bordenng Pod Phallip lo he east. As a mesling
place for paopa of the Kulin nations, Wiyndham City has an extremealy rich and diverse Aboniginal cuttural heritage.

The City of YWyndham has a forecasted population of over 208,000 for 2016, As the second fastest growing
municipality in Vicloria, Wyndham is characterised by its siralegically placed lecation with excellent logistic
connections o air and sea ports, The cly also offers inlensive agriculiure at Werribee South, major retail precincts
and the Wearmbes Park iourism pracinct — one of the langest and most frequently visitad tourism destinations in

metropolitan Melboumne.
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Sustainable Capacity Indicators
For the year ended 30 June 2016

Results

Indicator | measure 2015 2018 Material Variations

Population

Expenses per head of municipal populalion §1.235 51,364 Expenses have increased as a result of increased

[Total cxpenses / Municipal population] labour costs, the commencement of Western Loisure
Services and the future provision for landfill related
crls

Infrasiruciure per hasd of municipsl population $11.229 $14214  Infrasiructure assels have increased with the

[Value of infrasiructure / Municipal population] increase of new subdivision activilies.

Population density per length of road 155.3 1554 Mo material variafion

[Municipal population / Kilometres of local

roads]

Own-SoUrce revenue

Own-source revenue per head of municipal 662 $1.188  Revenue has increased partly due o the operations

population of Western Leisure Semvicos commencing in 2015086,

[Cwen-source revenue § Municipal populaBion] increased fees for landfill tipping and higher fees in
relation ko the growth in subdivision and building
devalopment

Recurrent granis

Recurrant grants per head of municinal 211 §142 Recament grants have mainly decreased due to half

popidation of 20156 Vicloria Grants Commission grants (56.15

[Recument grants / Municipal populafion] million) being recenved ol the end of 2014115,

Disadvaniage

Relative socio-economic disadvantage 7 T Mo material variafion

[Indax of Relafive Socio-economic

Disadvantage by decile]

Definitions

“adjusted underlying revenue” means lolal incorme other than:
{8) non-recurrent grants used o fund capital expendibure;, and

{b)  non-monetary asset contributions; and

{c) confributions fo fund capital expanditure from sources other than ihose refermed to above

“infrastructure” means non-current praperty, plant and equipment excluding land

Tocal road” means a sealed or unsealed road for which the council is the nesponsible read autharily under the: Road Management Act

2004

"“populabon” means lhe ressdent populabicn estimaled by councl

own-source revenua” means adjusied underdying revenue other than revenue thal is nol under the conlrol of council (including

government grants)

"relafive sccio-aconomic disadvantage”, in relation to a municipality, means the relafive socio-economic dizadvantage, expressed as
a decile for the relevant financial year, of the arca in which the municipality is localed according to the Index of Relalive Socio-

Economic Disadvaniage (Calalogue Number 2033,0.55.001) of SEIFA
“SEIFA" means the Socio-Economic Indexes for Areas published from fime to time by the Australian Bureau of Statistics on its

Inlernat websida

“unrasiricled cash® means all cash and cash equivalents other than restricted cash.
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Service Performance Indicators
For the year ended 30 June 2016

Results

Service | indicator | measure 2015 2016 Material Variations

Aguatic facilities

Utilisation

LUtilisation of aquatic facilities 0 4 Utilisation of the aquatic facilities has increased with the

[Mumber of visits fo aqualic faclities / Municipal commencement of AguaPulse.

populafion]

Animal management

Health and safety

Animal management prosecutions 21 B There were 37 prosecutions for the financial year of

[Number of suctessiul animal management which 33 were suctessiul proseculions proven by the

prosecutions) court. The remaining four prosecutions were settled out
of courl in favour of Council.

Food safety

Health and safety

Critical and major non-compliance nolifications 100% 100%  Thene ware four reports of critical and major non-

[Number of crilical non-compliance notifications compliances which were all investigaled and resolved.

and major non-complance nobificalons aboul 8

fond premises foliowad up / Number of critical

non-compliance notifications and major non-

compliance nolificalions about food premises)

00

Governance

Satisfaction

Salisfaction with councll decisions B4.0 Goa This demonsirates Council's commitment 1o liskening to

[Community safisfaction rafing out of 100 with the community. community engagement and

how council has performed in making decisions transparency in its decision making process.

in the inarest of the community]

Home and community care

Participation

Parifcipation in HACC service 14.0% 204%  Owerihe past year Council has been working hard fo

[Number of poople that received a HACC ensure thal appropriate levels of service ang provided

service / Municipal target population for HACC based on noed. An equity-based prionity of acoess loal

services] x100 has been developed and implemenied o ensure
consishancy in service distribubion o approptiale lo
nead.

Participation

Paritcipation in HACC service by CALD people 14.0% 102%  Council is addressing Ihis decrease in participation by

[Mumber of CALD pacphs who recelve a HACC CALD residents by implementing a range of initiatives

service / Municipal larget population in relafion tangeted at Alied Health professionals.

1o CALD pedple for HACC services] x100

Libraries

Participation

Active Bbrary members 10.0% 148%  With the inclusion of eBooks usage to this measure and

[Number of active brary members / Municipal the opening of the new Julia Gllard Library Tarneit,

population] 1100 aclive membership has increased.

Maternal and child health

Pariicipation

Parlicipation in the MCGH service 71.0% na In 2046 there was an inifiafive to iransition the majority of

[Mumber of children whe attend the MCH Wicloran counclls offering Malemal and Child Heslth

senvice al least ance (in the year) / Number of
children enrolled in the MCH service] x100

services 1o a new dalabase, The database is nol
expacied o provide relkable information unlil the end of
Seplember 2016, Themfore, Counc is unable to report
this data for the 201516 financial year.
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Results
Service | indicator | measure 2016 e Material Variations
Participation
Particination in tha MCH sarvica by Aborniginal ET Y na Im 2016 thers was an iniliative io iransition the majonty of
children Viciorian councils offering Maternal and Child Health
[Number of Aboriginal children who attend the servioes to a new dalabase. The database is not
MCH service al least once (in the year) / expacied o provide reliable information undil the end of
Mumber of Aboriginal children enrolled in the Seplember 2016. Therefore, Council is unable to report
MCH senvica] x100 this data fior the 2015118 financial year.
Roads
Satisfaction
Safisfaction with sealed local roads 6.0 664 This satisfaction rating recognises Councils continuing
[Communily salisfaction rafing out of 100 with commitment io meat community expectation in providing
howe council has perdormed on the condifion of a bocal road network that ks senviceable and safe.
sealed local roads|
Statutory Planning
Decision making
Counedl planning decislons upheld ol VCAT 60.0% 64.0%  The number of planning decisions upheld al VCAT has
[Mumber of VCAT decisions that did not sel increased from 60% last year lo 64% this year. Council
aaide councils decimon m relalion lo a planning makes planning applicalion decsiona which are
application ! Numbar of VCAT decisions in consistant with the local planning schame and when
redafion to planning applicalions] x100 challanged at VCAT, have bean supported 4% of the

time.

Waste Collection
Waste diversion
Kerbside colleciion waste diverted from kenalil 37.0% 365%  Anew Wasle and Litier Sirategy has been adopled with
[Weight of recyclables and green omganics long tesm waste diversion tangets of 80% diversion by

collectad from kerbside bins / Waight of
garbage, recyclables and green organics
collected from kerbside bins] X100

2040 A number of programs and iniiatives are being
implemented with the aim of warking lowards the long
term targels.

Definitions
“Aboriginal child™ means a child who is an Aboriginal person

"Aboriginal person” has fhe same meaning as in fhe Aboriginal Heritage Act 2006

“active library member means a member of a library who has bormowed a book from the library

"annual repor” meana an annual repor prepared by a councll under sections 131, 132 and 133 of the Act

"CALD" means cullurally and linguistically diverse and refers to persons bom outside Australia in a country whose nalional language

= not English

“class 1 100d premises” maans nod premises, within the meaning of the Food Act 1884, that have been dectarsd as class 1 food

premisas under saction 19C of that Adl

“class 2 food premises” means food premises, within the meaning of the Food Acf 1884 |, that have been declared as class 2 food

premises under section 10C of that Act

“Community Care Common Sandards “means the Community Care Common Standards for the delivery of HACC services, published

from time ta lime by Ihe Commonwesaith

“citical non-cormpliance oulcome notificakon” means a nolification recelved by council under section 18N(3) or (4) of the Food Acf
1884 , or advice given to council by an authorized afficer undar thal Act, of a daficiency thal poses an immadiaste senous threat fo

public health
“food premises” has the same maaning as in the Food Aot 1984

"HAGC program” means the Home and Community Care program established under the Agreement entered info for the purpose of

the Home and Community Cane Act 1985 of the Gommonwealth

"HACC senvice” means hama help, personal care or community respite provided under the HACC program
Tocal road” means a sealed or unsealed noad for which the council is the responsible road authonty under the Rosg Management Act

2004

“major nof-compliance outcome nolification” means a notification recelved by a councll under section 19M(3) or (4) of the Foad Act
1984, or advice given to councll by an authorized officer under that Act, of a deficiency that does not pose an immediate serous

threat o public health but may do o if o remedial action s taken

"MCH" means the Maternal and Child Health Service provided by a coundll to support The health and development of children within

the municipality from birth untl school age
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“populakion” means the ressdenl population estimatad by councll

“fargel population”™ has the same meaning a3 in the Agreemant entered inlo for the purposes of the Home and Community Care Act
1885 of the Commonveesalth

"WorkSafe reportable aquatic faclity safety incidenf” means an incident refating to a council aquafic facility that i required to ba
nofified io the Victorian WorkCover Authority under Part 5 of the Occupational Heaith and Safety Act 2004,
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Financial Performance Indicators
For the year ended 30 June 2016

Results Forecasts

Dimension / indicator | measire 2015 2018 217 2018 2019 2020 Material Variations

Efficiency

Revenue level

Average residendal rate per residenitel propery §1.404 §1,582 §1.812 31,702 31,728 §1,758 The averape rate increass for the 2015/18 year was

assessment 5.5%. The outer year forecasts an increase in

[Fesidential rale revenue | Nomber of general raies of 2 5% in 2018H 7 and 4.5%

resideniial propedy assessments)] therealier, The 4 5% increase is however subject to
approval from he Minksber under he rate capping
frameswork.

Expenditure level

Expenses per propery assessment 53,085 $3.418 $3,308 3407 §a5m §31643  Expenses per propery assessment have increased

[Total expenses / Number of property @5 a result of increased labour cosis, the

assesaments| commencement of Westem Leisure Senvices and the
future provision fior landfill related cosls.

Workforce tumover

Resignetions and ferminalions compaved fo 80% 04% B.0% 8.0% 8.0% 8.0% The increase in staff lumover is due in part o the

average staff review of the Aged and Disability services and the

[Number of permaneni stall resignations and Wyndham 2040 restruciure

ferminations / Average number of permanent

sitafl for the financal year] x100

Liquidity

Working capital

Curren! assefs compared fo current Rablifies 206 9% 378 2% 303.0% 302 0% 282 1% T10%  Working capilal percentage has increased due o an
increase in cument assels. This relales mainly to the

[Current assets |/ Current labilities] 1100 increase in Developer Contributions that are held in
cash backed resarves, as well as, Weeribee CBD
land thal has been classified as a curreni assel held
Tor sale.

Unrestricted cash

Unireslricted cash compared lo cumen kabilities 35 8% BE 5% ar 5% BO. 1% Tad% B1.2%  The incresse in the urestrcled cash ralio is dus

[Unresiricied cash / Current liabilities] 100

maostly to $15 million of new bormowings undertaken
n 2015M8. Thess funds will be expendead for he
capital works program which has been camied
Torward fo the 201617 financial year.
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[Feate revenua | Adjusted underying revenus]
x100

Results Forecasts

Dimension/indicatonmeaslne 2015 206 a7 2018 209 2020 Material Variations

Obligations

Assef renewal

Assel reewal companed o depreciation 82 5% 22 % Ho% 30 5% 28.8% 30.3% The 201415 results included a mapor proect beang
the redevelopment of Wyndham's Leisure and Events

[Asset renewal expenses [ Assel depreciation| Canire. This has confributed to the higher

x100 percentage for that vear in comparisan fo 201516
and outer year forecasts,

Loans and borrowings

Loang and bormowings comparsd fo rales 27 0% MI% J25% HI% 35.M% 45.3% Council incraasad it2 borrowings from 540 million in
2014445 1o §55 million in 201516 to fund capital

[Inferest bearing loans and bomowings / Rate warks,

revenue) x100

Loans and borrowings

Loans and borrowings repayments compared 286% 12% 15% 1.6% 1.7% 21% The 2415 resull was impacied by a short term

fo rates loan of 540 milion being repaid and the debl

[Inferest and principal repaymenls on inkenes| replaced by $40 millon in borowing through the

bearing loans and bomowings / Rabe revenue] issue of bonds.  Curnent and forecast years inberest

=100 paymeants ane babeeen 1% and 7% of rales revenue,

Indebtedness

Non-current Rabilifies compared fo own source 33.8% 5% 28.8% HE% M.3% 36.0% No malerial varations

fevenue

[Mon-current Rabilifies | Own sounce revenue]

100

Operaling position

Adjusted underlying result

Adfusied underying swplus jor deficl) -4.0% 1.2% 4.3% 4.8% 4.8% 4.8% This result has improvesd from 2014415 a5 revenue
his increased with the commencament of Westem

[Adjusted undertying surplus (deficity’ Adjusbed Lewsure Sarvces, increased fees for landfil hpping

underying revenua] x100 and higher fees in relation to the growth in
subdivision and building developmeant.

Stability

Rates concentration Whilst the average general rates has increased by

Rates compared fo ediisled underying 62.5% 56 0% 5h8% 56 8% 5% &7 6% 5.5%, revanie has increased dua 1o the

revenue commencement of Westemn Letsure Services,

increased lees for landfill tipping and higher fees in
relation fo the growdh in subdivision and building
development,
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Results Forecasts
Dimension [ Indicator | measiure 215 2016 a7 2018 2m8 2020 Material Variations
Rates effort
Rates compared lo property values 04% 04% 04% 0.4% DA% 0.4% No maleral vanalons

[Rale revenue | Capital improved value of
réleable properfies in the municipality | x100

Definitions

"adjusted underving revenue” means lolal income olher than;

{a) non-recurrent grants used ko fund capital expenditure; and

{b)  non-monetary assel coninbubions; and

{c)  coniributions to fund capital expenditure from sources ofher than those referred fo above

"adjusted underhing sunplus (or delicit]” means adjusted undedying revenue less lolal expenditure

"asset renewal expenditure” means expenditure on an existing asset or on replacing an easting asset that returns the service capability of the assef lo its onginal capability
“currenl assels” has the sams meaning a3 n (he AAS

“current liabiliies™ has the same meaning as in the AAS

“non-curnanl assals” means all assals olhar than currenl assals

"non-current liabiities™ means all liabiltics other than current liabilites

“non-recurment granl” means a grant oblained an fhe condition that it be expendad in a specified manner and i nol xpecied o be received again during the peniod coverad by a councils
Strategic Resource Plan

“own-scurce nevenue” means adjusted underlying revenue ofher than revanue that is nol under the control of council (including govemment grants

*populafion “means the resident populafion estimaled by council

“rale revenus” means revenue from general rates, municipal charges, service rates and service charges

“recurrent grani “means a grant other than a non-recument grant

“resideniial rales” means revenue from general rates, municipal charges, service rales and service charges levied on residential propedies

"pesbricied cash” means cash and cash equivalents, within fhe meaning of the AAS, that are not avallable for use ofher than for a purpose Tor which i ks resiricied, and includes cash lo be
used lo fund capital works expenditure from the previous financial year

“unresiricied cash”™ means all cash and cash equivalents other ihan restricted cash.
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Other Information
For the year ended 30 June 2016

1. Basis of preparation

Council is required to prepare and include a performance slatement within its annual repor. The performance
statement includes the resulls of the prescribed sustainable capacity, service performance and financial performance
indicators and measunes logether with a descriplion of the municapal district and an cxplanation of maberial variations
in the results. This slatement has been prepared to meel the requirements of the Local Goverrmend Act 1989 and
Local Government (Planning and Repeding) Regulations 2014

Whare applicable the resullts in the parformance stalement have been prepared on accounting bases consistent with
those reported in the Financial Statements. The other resulls ane based on information drawn from council information
syatems of from thind parties (e.g. Australian Bureau of Stafisfics).

The performance statement presents the actual resulls for the current vear and for the prescribed financial
performance indicalors and measures, the results forecast by the council's slrategic rescurce plan. The Local
Governmenl {Planning and Reporfing) Regulations 2014 requires explanation of any maberial variations in the results
conkained in the performance stalemenl. Council has adopled malerniality threshalds relevant lo each indicator and
measure and axplanalions have not been provided for varations below the materiality thresholds unless the vaniance
is congidered to be malerial because of ifs nature.

Thie forecast figures included in the performance statement are those adopted by council in its strategic resource plan
on 27 June 2018 and which forms part of the council plan. The strategic rescurce plan includes estimales based on
key assumplions aboul the fulure thal were relevant at the time of adoption and aimed al achieving sustainability over
Ihe long berm. Delailed information on the aclual financial resulls is contained in the General Purpose Financial
Siatemanis. Tha siralegic rasource plan can be obiained by contacting counci

10
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Certification of the Performance Statement

In my opmion, tha accompanying performance stalemeant has bean prapared in accondance wilh tha Local
Governmeni Act 1989 and the Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014,

Sleven Lambert
Principal Accounting Officer
Dated:

In our opinion, the accompanying performance statemant of the jcouncll name) for the year ended 30 June 2016
presents fairly the results of council's performance in accordance with the Local Government Act 1989 and the Local
Government {Planning and Reporfing) Regulations 2014,

The performance statement conlains the relevant pedormance indicabors, measures and resulls in relation 1o service

A the daie of signing. we are not awane of any circumstances that would render any parficulars in the performance
statement to be misleading of inaccurate.

¥e have been authonsed by the council and by the Local Governmenl (Planning and Reportng) Regulations 2014 lo
cartity s parlonmancs stalemani m its fmal farm

Adete Hegedich

Mayor
Dated.

Glenn Goodiellow, GAICD
Councillor

Helly Grigsby
Chisf Exscutive Officer

1
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The following are the results In the prescribed form of Council's assessment agalnst the prescribed governance

and management checklist

Governance and Management lfams

1 Community engagement policy (policy outlining
council’s commitment 1o engaging with the
community on matters of public interest)

Policy

Date of operation of current policy:
24 June 2013

2 Community engagement guldelines (guldelines to
assist staff to determine when and how to engage
with the community)

Guidelines

Date of operation of current guidelines:
B October 2013

3  Strategic Resource Plan [plan under section 126 of
the Act outlining the financlal and non-financial
resources required for at least the next 4 financlal
years)

Adopted in accordance with section 126 of
the Act

Date of adoption: 27 lune 2016

4  Annual budget (plan under section 130 of the Act
setting out the sarvices to be provided and
initiatives to be undertaken over the next 12
manths and the funding and other resources
required)

5  Asset management plans (plans that set out the
assat maintenance and renewal neads for key
infrastructure asset classes for at least the next
10 years)

Adopted in accordance with section 130 of
the Act

Date of adoption: 27 June 2006

Plans

Date of operation of current plans:
Facilities 2 July 2011

Open Space 2 July 2011

Roads 2 luly 2011

Stormwater 2 July 2011

& Rating strategy [stralegy setting out the rating
structure of Council to bevy rates and charges

Strategy

Date of operation of current strategy:
27 June 2016

7 Risk policy [policy cutlining Council’s commitment
and approach to minimising the risks 1o Council's
operations)

Policy

Date of operation of current policy:
23 June 2014

8  Fraud policy [policy outlining coundl's
commitment and approach to minimising the risk
of fraud)

Policy

Date of operation of current policy:
11 March 2015

9 Municipal emergency management plan [plan
under section 20 of the Emergency Management

Act 1986 for emerngency prevention, response and
recovery)

Prepared and maintained in accordance
with section 20 of the Emergency
Management

Act 1986

Date of preparation: 23 lanuary 2015
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CHECKLIST 2015/16 cont.

ITEM NO: 4.1

Governance and Managemeant [tams

10

Procuremant policy [policy under section 1864 of
the Local Govermment Act 1989 outlining the
matters, practices and procedures that will apply
to all purchases of goods, services and works)

Prepared and approved in accordance with
section 1864 of the Local Government Act
1989

Date of approval: 27 June 2016

11

Business continuity plan [plan setting out the
actions that will be undertaken to ensure that key
services continue to operate in the event of a
disaster]

Plan

Date of operation of current plan:
1 December 2014

12

Disaster recovery plan (plan setting out the
actlons that will be undertaken to recover and
restore business capability in the event of a
dizaster)

Plan

Date of operation of current plan:
1 June 2016

13

Risk management frameweork [framework
outlining councll’s approach to managing risks ta
the Council’s operations)

Framewark

Date of operation of current framewaork:
4 March 2015

14

Audit Committee [advisory committee of council
under section 139 of the Act whose role is to
oversee the integrity of a councll's financial
reporting, processes to manage risks to the
council’s operations and for compliance with
applicable legal, ethical, and regulatory
requirements)

Established in accordance with section 139
of the Act

Date of establishment: 17 June 1996

15

Internal audit (independent accounting
professionals engaged by the councll to provide
analyses and recommendations aimed at
improving council’s governance, risk and
management cantrals)

Engaged

[ate of engagement of current provider:
20 February 2016

Performance reporting framework [a set of
indicatars measuring financial and non-financial
performance, including the performance
indicators referred to in section 131 of the Act)

Framewark

Date of operation of current framework:
1 July 2015

17

Council Plan reporting [report reviewing the
performance of the councll against the Council
Plan, including the results in relation to the
strateglc Indicators, for the first slx months of the
financial year)

Report
Date of report: 22 February 2016

18

Financial reporting (quarterly statements to
Council under section 138 of the Act comparing
budgeted revenue and expenditure with actual
revenue and expenditure)

Statements presented to councl In
accordance with section 138(1) of the Act

Date statements presented:
14 September 2015, 23 Novemnber 2015,
22 February 2016 and 23 May 2016
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ATTACHMENT NO: 3 - GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT

CHECKLIST 2015/16 cont.

ITEM NO: 4.1

Governance and Managemeant [tams

19

Riek reporting [sie-monthly reports of strategic
risks to council’s operations, their likelihood and
consequences of occurdng and risk minimisation
strategies)

Reports

Date of reports: 9 December 2015 and
15 June 2016

20

Performance reporting [sbi-monthly reports of
indicators measuring the results against financial
and non-financlal performance, including
performance indicators referred to in section 131
of the Act)

Reports

Date of reports: 14 September 2015 and
2 February 2016

21

Annual report [annual report under sections 131,
132 and 133 of the Act to the community
containing a report of operations and audited
financial and performance statements)

Considered and approved at a meeting of
eouncil in accordance with section 134 of
the Act

Date statements presented:
26 October 2015

22

Councillor Code of Conduet [Code under section
T6C of the Act setting out the conduct principles
and the dispute resolution processes to be
fellowed by Councillors)

Rewviewed in accordance with section 76C of
the Act

Date reviewed: 14 June 2016

23

Delegations (a document setting out the powers,
duties and functions of council and the Chief
Executive Officer that have been delegated to
members of staff)

Reviewed in accordance with section S8(6)
of the Act

Date of review:

Council to CEQ: 24 June 2013
CEQ to Staff: 15 june 2016

24

Meeting procedures [a local law governing the
conduct of meetings of council and special
committess)

Meeting procedures local law made in
accordance with section 91(1) of the Act

Date local law made: 22 September 2014

| eertify that this information presents Fairly the status of Council’s governance and management

Arrangements.

Kelly Grigsby Cr Adele Hegedich
Chief Executive Officer Mayor

Dated: Dated:
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